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Zhong lJie #E A&
Chairman = /&

On behalf of the Board of Directors of CNNC International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), |
present the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2019 (the “Year”).
has recorded a significant increase in revenue and the overall

| am pleased to report, the Group
operating performance had improved from last year. During the
Year, the Mongolian Uranium Mining Project has initiated a lawsuit
to resume the application of license. However, as there is risk of
losing the lawsuit, the Group has adopted a prudent approach and
made a full impairment of the Mongolian Uranium Mining Project
with an impairment loss of approximately HK$210,637,000, resulting
a net loss for the Year.
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BUSINESS AND INVESTMENT

The Group continued to focus on natural uranium products trade

and supply chain trading business revenue during the Year, with a
significant improvement in revenue income. The Group successfully
completed the investment of 18.45% interest in CNNC Financial
Leasing Limited (“CNNC Leasing”) in February 2019 and became an
associate of CNNC Leasing after the appointment of two members
of the Group’s to the Board of Directors of CNNC Leasing. Starting
from September 2019, the Group shared 18.45% of the profit or
loss after tax of CNNC Leasing.

RESULTS

During the Year, the Group has recorded a significant growth in
revenue, amounted to HK$3,169,836,000 (2018: approximately
HK$1,992,052,000), a growth of 59% from last year, gross profit
to approximately HK$32,641,000 (2018:
approximately HK$22,685,000). However, due to the impairment loss

increased by 44%

of approximately HK$210,637,000 for the Mongolian Uranium
Mining Project, a net loss of approximately HK$219,323,000 (2018:
profit HK$23,613,000) was recorded. The total comprehensive
expense for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$231,772,000 (2018: total comprehensive income
approximately HK$20,988,000).
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Year 2020 will be a challenging year. The Sino-US trade war and
the global pandemic have led to weaker demand, deteriorating
credits, economic slowdown and have adverse effects to the Group’s
supply chain management business. The Group expects its
performance will be adversely affected in year 2020. The Group will
adjust its strategy to focus on the continued development of its
natural uranium trading business and to actively seek high-quality
uranium resources projects to complement the development of the

CNNC Group.

Upon completion of the investment of CNNC Leasing, the Group will
share the profits of CNNC Leasing. The stable development of CNNC
Leasing, and according to its articles of association, an annual
distribution of not less than 90% profit of CNNC Leasing will bring
stable cash flow and substantial returns to the Group.

At a hearing in the Mongolian court on 30th April, 2020, the court
refused to discuss the group’s application of license. Taking into
account that an application for a mining license had been made
under the Mongolian Laws prior to the expiry of the exploration
license, and that the Group had been in negotiations with the
relevant Government officials of Mongolia, as well as the opinion of
the Group’s Mongolian legal adviser, the Group remains proactive to
look for satisfactory solution for the proceedings. Pending a detailed
written judgement from the court and further consultation by the
Group’s Mongolian legal adviser, the Group will appeal the decision
of the court.
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APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt appreciation to our

shareholders, their
supports and my gratitude to the Group’s
management team and staff for their endeavours and contributions

in the past year.

customers and business partners for
long-standing

Zhong lJie
Chairman
Hong Kong, 6th May, 2020
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Management Discu and Analysis
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MARKET AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year ended 31st December, 2019 (the “Year”), the
Group has continued its business of exploration and trading of
mineral properties, trading of electronics and other products (such as
liquid crystal displays, flash drives, memory cards, metal raw
materials etc), and completed its investments of approximately
18.45% of the registered capital of CNNC Financial Leasing
Company Limited (“CNNC Leasing”). In the Year, the Group has
further diversified its trading activities in other products, such as
dispersed metal products, etc.

The Group has recorded revenue from trading of natural uranium
and supply chain business of approximately HK$3,169,836,000
(2018: approximately HK$1,992,052,000) for the Year, an increase of
approximately 59% over last year. The increase in revenue is due to
the increase in revenue generated from the business of trading of
uranium, electronics and metal products. During the Year, a net loss
of approximately HK$219,323,000 was recorded as compared to a
net profit of approximately HK$23,613,000 recorded in the
corresponding period last year. The aforesaid significant loss is
primarily due to (i) the full impairment loss of exploration and
evaluation assets in relation to the Group’s Mongolian Mining
Project of approximately HK$210,367,000 (the “Full Impairment”);
(i) the absence of write-back of tax provision in the PRC in the Year
(2018: amount of write-back of tax provision approximately
HK$19,360,000); (iii) the finance costs for the Group’s investment in
CNNC Leasing and the trading facilities approximately
HK$17,365,000 (2018: Nil); and (iv) the share of loss of an associate
of approximately HK$1,896,000 (2018: Nil).

8 CNNC International Limited 2019 Annual Report
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Management

During the Year,

the Group continued to communicate and
negotiate with the Mongolian Government to set up a joint venture
company for the application of the mining licenses of the Group’s
Mongolian Mining Project. As mentioned in the announcements
dated 9th January, 3rd February and 6th March, 2020, in December
2019, the Group received a notice from the relevant Mongolian
authority, which suggested the Group to apply for a court order in
relation to the matters for the reason that the relevant exploration
licenses had expired. In January 2020, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, which is the holder of the exploration
licenses (as the applicant) has filed in the Capital City Administrative
Court of First-Instance of Mongolia (the “Court”) an administrative
lawsuit (the “Lawsuit”) with the Mineral Resources and Petroleum
Authority of Mongolia (as the respondent) claiming, among other
things, to confirm the non-performance of the respondent in
relation to the granting of the mining licenses in accordance with
the Mongolian laws and reinstate the validity of the exploration
licenses. As mentioned in the announcement dated 4th May, 2020,
the Company has been informed by the Group’s Mongolian legal
adviser that in the hearing of the Court on 30th April, 2020, the
Without

providing detailed reasons, the Court apparently considered that the

Court refused discussion of the Group’s application.

application had been time-barred. Written judgement of the Court
(with detailed reasons) are expected to be delivered within 14 days.
Having considered the reasons that the application of the mining
licenses had been launched according to the Mongolian Laws well
before the expiration of the exploration licenses, the Group had
been negotiating with the government officials of the relevant
Mongolian authorities, and the advice from the Group’s Mongolian
legal adviser, the management remains optimistic that the
application could be resolved satisfactorily. Pending the delivery of
the written judgement of the Court and further advice of the
Group’s Mongolian legal adviser, the Group would appeal against
the decision of the Court. Having discussed with the auditors of the
Company with reference to the Court hearing on 30th April, 2020
in relation to the Lawsuit, which was not favourable to the Group
and the applicable accounting requirements, the Group has adopted
a prudent approach and made a full impairment loss for the
Group’s Mongolian Mining Project in the amount of approximately

HK$210,367,000.
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Management Discussion a
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As the Mongolian Mining Project is not yet in operation nor
generating revenue, and the market price of natural uranium
products has remained low, the Lawsuit does not affect the current
normal business operation and revenue of the Group. The Company
is closely monitoring the progress of the Lawsuit and will make
further announcement(s) as and when appropriate to inform its
shareholders and potential investors if there is any significant
development in respect of the Lawsuit.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded a “Revenue” and "Cost of
sales” of approximately HK$3,169,836,000 (2018: approximately
HK$1,992,052,000) and approximately HK$3,137,195,000 (2018:
approximately HK$1,969,367,000) respectively, an increase of 59%
in both items over last year, which resulted in a “Gross profit” of
approximately HK$32,641,000 (2018: approximately HK$22,685,000),
an increase of approximately 44% over last year. The increase in
revenue and gross profit is due to the increase in revenue generated
from the business of trading of uranium, electronics and metal
products (which are covered under the Supply Chain segment). The
Group did not record any revenue from provision of supply chain
management services during the Year (2018: approximately
HK$7,659,000) as the Group was considered as a principal in
providing goods to customers for all the revenue generated during
the Year.

“Other income and gains (losses)”, of approximately HK$7,656,000
(2018: approximately HK$2,464,000), was mainly operating income
generated from the supply chain business from customers’ overdue
“Net
exchange losses” of approximately HK$2,597,000 were the net

charges and interest income generating from the bank.
exchange losses recorded during the Year (2018: approximately
HK$535,000).

Due to the substantial increase of business activities during the
Year, the “Selling and distribution expenses” has increased by
to approximately HK$3,560,000 (2018:
approximately HK$1,982,000) as compared to last year. The
“Administrative expenses” amounted to approximately
HK$21,918,000 (2018: approximately HK$18,340,000) during the
Year, an increase of approximately 20% compared to last year as

approximately 80%

the general activities of the Group has expanded during the Year.
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During the Year, the Group has incurred an impairment loss of
approximately HK$210,367,000 (2018: Nil)
Mongolian Mining Project. Such impairment loss was recorded based

on the Group’'s

on having discussed with the auditors of the Company with
reference to the assessment of the success rate of similar lawsuits
and the Court hearing on 30th April, 2020 in relation to the
Lawsuit, which was not favourable to the Group and the applicable
accounting requirements, the Group has made a full impairment loss
for the Group’s Mongolian Mining Project.

“Share of result of an associate”, of which a loss of approximately
HK$1,896,000 was recorded during the Year (2018: Nil). The share
of result of associate was generated from the Group’s 18.45% share
of the registered capital in CNNC Leasing since CNNC Leasing has
become the Group’s associate on 11th September, 2019 and after
adjustments between the accounting standards of Hong Kong and
the PRC. On the date of the acquisition, the Group’s 18.45% share
of the capital in CNNC Leasing was accounted for as equity
instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income of the
Group until CNNC Leasing has become the Group’s associate on
11th September, 2019.

During the Year, the Group has incurred “Finance costs” of
approximately HK$17,365,000 (2018: Nil) from various bank facilities
of which the Group has secured during the Year for the expansion
of the Group’s business trading activities and equity investment in
CNNC Leasing.

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE) INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Summing up the combined effects of the foregoing, loss for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$219,323,000 (2018: profit
approximately HK$23,613,000). After taken into account of the
other comprehensive expense of approximately HK$12,449,000
(2018: approximately HK$2,625,000) relating to exchange differences
arising from the translation to presentation currency, the fair value
change on investment in equity instrument of fair value through
other comprehensive income and the share of exchange difference
of an associate, the total comprehensive expense for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$231,772,000 (2018:
comprehensive income of approximately HK$20,988,000).

total
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FUTURE STRATEGIES

Due to the Sino-US trade war and the Pandemic outbreak in the
PRC and across the globe, which results in, among other things,
weakening demand, deteriorating credits, slowdown of the economy
and various limitations, such as movement of people and goods and
work resumptions, the customers, end-users and suppliers of the
Group's supply chain management business, who are mostly based
in the PRC, have been affected. Based on the aforesaid, the Group
currently expects that the revenue to be generated from the Group’s
supply chain management business, as well as the financial results,
for the 2020 financial year will be adversely affected. The Group will
closely monitor the market situation and the development of the
Sino-US trade war and the Pandemic, and will seek to adjust its
business strategies with a view to minimize their adverse impacts,
including the consideration to focus more in the uranium products
trading business, in which the Group has established competitive
advantages.

As mentioned in the announcement, dated 26th February, 2019, of
18.45%
interest in CNNC Leasing. By leveraging on the market expertise and

the Company, the Group completed its investment in

size of the shareholders of CNNC Leasing including China National
Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC"), the ultimate holding company of the
Company, a market leader in the nuclear energy market in the PRC,
the management believes that CNNC Leasing could be able to
develop into a promising business and generate satisfactory returns
11th September, 2019 (the “Date of
CNNC Leasing has appointed two personnels

to its shareholders. On
Appointment”),
designated by the Group to the board of directors of CNNC Leasing.
Since the Date of Appointment, the Group has been considered to
have significant influence on CNNC Leasing, which has been
recognised as an associate of the Group. According to the
accounting policy of the Group, from the Date of Appointment, the
Group would share the after-tax profit or loss and other

comprehensive income of the associate.

The associate of the Group (Société des Mines d'Azelik S.A.
(“Somina™)) is still facing severe cash flow problems and will not be
able to resume production within a short period of time. The Group
will closely monitor the situation and continue to work with the
other shareholders of Somina for its future plans.
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For the Mongolian Mining Project, the Group filed the Lawsuit in
January 2020. For further details, please refer to the sub-section
headed “Market and Business Overview"” above. Although the result
of the first hearing was not favourable, the management remains
optimistic that the Lawsuit could eventually be resolved
satisfactorily. The management will work closely with the Group’s
Mongolian legal adviser about the appeal against the decision of the
Court. The Group would continue to closely monitor the progress of
the case and will make further announcement(s) as and when
appropriate to inform its shareholders and potential investors if

there is any significant development in respect of the case.

In August 2019, the Group entered into the Strategic Agreement
with CNNC industry Fund Management Corporation (“CNNC Fund”),
an affiliate of CNNC, pursuant to which, among other things, the
Group has the right (but not the obligation) to participate or invest
in projects relating to the development of nuclear electricity
overseas, application of nuclear technologies, nuclear industry chain
and new technologies offered by CNNC Fund.

The Group aims to expand and diversify its business by leveraging
on the strengths of CNNC, in the field of nuclear energy, to develop
project with reasonable returns and continues to explore other
possible investment opportunities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31st December, 2019, the Group employed 22 (2018: 16) full-
time employees of whom 4 (2018: 3) were based in Hong Kong, 14
(2018: 9) were based in the PRC and 4 (2018: 4) were based in
Mongolia. Total staff costs incurred during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$11,746,000 (2018: approximately HK$8,181,000).

Remuneration policies and packages for the Group’s employees are
based on their performance, working experiences and conditions
prevailing in the industry. Depending on the financial results of the
Group and the performance of individual employees, eligible staff
may also be granted discretionary performance bonuses, in addition
to basic salaries, retirement schemes and medical benefit schemes.
To raise work quality and management abilities of its employees, the
Group provides job rotation, in-house training and external training
courses to employees.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Year, the Group's bank borrowings increased significantly
compared to last year. As at 31st December, 2019, the Group had
bank borrowings of approximately HK$538,774,000 (at 31st
December, 2018: Nil), of which approximately HK$253,761,000 (at
31st December, 2018: Nil) was being utilized to fund the expansion
of the Group’s business trading activities, and approximately
HK$285,013,000 (at 31st December 2018: Nil) was being utilized to
fund the equity investment of CNNC Leasing. The Group had net
current liabilities amounting to approximately HK$100,080,000 (at
31st December, 2018: net current assets approximately
HK$337,934,000) and the current liabilities amounting to
approximately HK$811,994,000 (at 31st December, 2018:
approximately HK$44,073,000) as at 31st December, 2019 due to
the reclassification of bank borrowings as mentioned in Note 1 in
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. During the Year, the
Group has continued to engage in the business activities of trading
uranium, electronic products and metals products, and as at 317st
December, 2019, the Group had trade receivables of approximately
HK$247,843,000 (at 31st December, 2018: approximately
HK$21,611,000) and trade payables of approximately
HK$153,398,000 (at 31st December, 2018: Nil). Capital expenditures
on property, plant and equipment were approximated HK$170,000
during the Year (2018: approximately HK$429,000). During the Year,
the Group did not have any capital expenditures on exploration and
evaluation assets (2018: Nil). The Group did not have any
commitment to purchase additional property, plant and equipment
that had been contracted for but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements as at 31st December, 2019 (at 31st December,
2018: Nil).

During the Year, net cash outflow from operating activities
amounted to approximately HK$148,903,000 (2018: approximately
HK$64,074,000) mainly due to increase in inventories and trade
receivables. The Group’s cash on hand and bank balances decreased
from approximately HK$177,917,000 as at 31st December, 2018 to
approximately HK$100,543,000 as at 31st December, 2019. The
Group also has restricted cash of approximately HK$19,004,000
(31st December, 2018: Nil) as at 31st December, 2019 which was
pledged to various banks for bank facilities and bills payable.

Total shareholders’ funds decreased from approximately
HK$566,694,000 as at 31st December, 2018 to approximately
HK$334,922,000 as at 31st December, 2019, mainly due to the total
comprehensive expense during the Year. The gearing ratio, in terms
of total debts to total assets, increased to 0.71 (at 31st December,
2018: 0.07) as at 31st December, 2019 due to the increase in bank
borrowings and the Full Impairment of the exploration and
evaluation assets.
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ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

There were no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the Year, other than 18.45% interest in
CNNC Leasing initially acquired in February 2019 and subsequently
being recognised as an associate of the Group as of 11th

September, 2019.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's income, expenditure for operation, investment, and
in USD, HKD, Mongolian
Tugrigs and RMB. Fluctuations of the exchange rates of Mongolian

borrowings are mainly denominated

Tugrigs and RMB against foreign currencies could affect the
operating costs of the Group. Currencies other than Mongolian
Tugrigs and RMB were relatively stable during the Year, the Group
did not expose to significant foreign exchange risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy for
hedging significant foreign currency exposure.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no significant change in the capital structure of the
Group since 31st December, 2018.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

The 37.2% of the share capital in Somina held by a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Ideal Mining Limited, was pledged to a
bank for banking facilities granted to Somina. As security for
banking facilities granted to the Group for its approximately
18.45% investment in CNNC Leasing (“Investment Interest”), the
following was charged on the Group: (i) the Investment Interest; (ii)
the 100% share capital in CNNC International (HK) Limited (“CNNC
(HK)") (@ wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the holder
of the Investment Interest); (iii) the dividend payment of CNNC
Leasing; and (iv) certain bank account(s) of CNNC (HK). As security
for banking facilities granted to the Group for its trading operation,
certain bank accounts of China Nuclear International Corporation
and CNNC International Holdings (Shenzhen) Limited, both are
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, were charged. Apart from
the above, there was no charge on the Group's assets during the
Year (2018: apart from the shares in Somina, Nil).

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
shares.
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the third Environment, Social and Governance Report by the
in the
with disclosure

Group, highlighting the Group’s overall performance

environmental, social
reference made to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in

Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and Guidance set out by The

and governance aspects,

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Unless otherwise stated, this environmental and social report covers
the overall performance of Hong Kong headquarters, Shenzhen
office and Mongolia office for the year ended 31st December, 2019
in the two main areas: environmental and social.

ENGAGING OUR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group has made every effort to engage all of its stakeholders,
including shareholders and investors, employees, customers, suppliers
and business partners, government and regulators, the environment
and the community to achieve sustainable development.

A. Environmental
Types of emissions the Group has involved in the reporting
period were mainly electricity, gasoline and paper. The Group's
business does not involve in production-related air, water, and
land pollutions which are regulated under national laws and
regulations.
Total floor area coverage for the Group was 368 sq.m (2018:
368 sg.m). Of which the floor area coverage for Hong Kong
headquarters, Mongolia office and Shenzhen office was 114
sq.m, 124 sg.m and 130 sg.m (2018: 114 sqg.m, 124 sqg.m
and 130 sg.m) respectively.
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Environmental (continued)
Greenhouse Gas Emission

A. R

vernance Report contined
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BEREHKE

Scope of greenhouse
gas emission

Emission sources

Emission

(in tonnes of CO,e)

Total emission
(in percentage)

HmE HmE
mEREBHREER HemoR iR (MWW= g LR E &) (BqtE)
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E—-NE —NF ZFB—hE —N\F
Scope 1
# &1
Direct emission Petroleum consumed
by vehicles
BEHEN BEF A2 A 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
Scope 2
&[22
Indirect emission Purchased electricity
il % BE i & EFE 12.56 12.11 85.38% 93.33%
Scope 3
# [#3
Other indirect emission Paper consumption
Hth FE B2 HE R MR OE R 2.15 0.87 14.62% 6.67%
Total
BEt 14.71 12.98 100% 100%
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A. Environmental (ontinved) A. BRiEe
Greenhouse gas emission intensity HEREBHREE
Unit 2019 2018
EE (i ZE-hE —T—)\F
Total greenhouse gas mERBAHENRZ@Q) tCO,e
emission (a) 7= = 14.71 12.98
Total floor area of FRBE 2 HEELEEED)  sgm
coverage (b) 7oK 368 368
Emission intensity (c)=(a)/(b) HE % [Z (c)=(a)/(b) tCO,e/sq.m
B 5 OKEE
—ftmEE 0.04 0.04
There were approximately 14.71 tonnes (2018: 12.98 tonnes) REBMEBNREHE 2R EREHE

18

of carbon dioxide equivalent greenhouse gases emitted from
the Group’s operation in the reporting period. The annual
emission intensity was approximately 0.04 tCO,e/sq.m (2018:
0.04 tCO,e/sq.m).

Gasoline
No gasoline were used for motor vehicles by the Group in the
reporting period (2018: Nil).

The Group’s Hong Kong headquarters, Shenzhen office and
Mongolia office did not have any vehicle in the reporting
period. The Group encourages green travelling policy to reduce
the usage of public transport and to lower gas emission.

Electricity

The electricity consumption by the Group was approximately
17,882 kWh (2018: 17,247 kWh), contributing to
approximately 12.56 tonnes (2018: 12.11 tonnes) of carbon
dioxide equivalent.

The Group always uses energy savings electrical equipment,
encourages employees to save energy and enhances electrical
equipment efficiency.

Paper

A total of approximately 0.5 tonne (2018: 0.2 tonne) of paper
was used for daily office operations by the Group in the
reporting period, contributing to approximately 2.15 tonne
(2018: 0.87 tonne) of carbon dioxide equivalent.

The Group encourages paperless office environment, reducing
the paper usage and requests double-sided printing.

CNNC International Limited 2019 Annual Report
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B. Social B. #&
(1) Employment and labour practices (1) ERRETEH
Employment 18
The Group had a total number of 22 (2018: 16) full R—E—NF+=—_A=+—8"
time employees as of 31st December, 2019. REBRBRERERE(ZZE—N
F:16%) 2HRAZBES -

Employee’s location distribution Hong Kong PRC Mongolia
EERESDH &t T E )
No. Percentage No. Percentage No. Percentage
A 11174 N | 1174 A {174
2019
—Z-NEF 4 18% 14 64% 4 18%
2018
—T-)N\F 3 19% 9 56% 4 25%
Employee’s sex distribution Male Female
SR 5 B it
No. Percentage No. Percentage
AB fitt AB 174
2019
—E-NF 10 45% 12 55%
2018
—E-N\F 7 44% 9 56%
Employee’s age distribution 26-35 36-45 46-55 56 & above
EEFRSH 26-35 36-45 46-55 56% I L
No. Percentage No.  Percentage No.  Percentage No. Percentage
N | 11174 N | ikt N 11174 N | 11174
2019
—Z-hEF 10 45% 7 32% 4 18% 1 5%
2018
—Z-N\F 6 38% 4 25% 4 25% 2 12%

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to
attract and retains talents. Salaries are reviewed and
adjusted on a yearly basis based on performance
appraisals and the market trend. Employees are entitled
to year-end bonus, mandatory provident fund, social
security contributions and various types of paid leave in
addition to annual leave and sick leave. The Group also
provides internal academic and training opportunities to
the employees.

The Group commits to ensure safe and healthy working
environment for employees, and equal opportunities for
job advancement and benefits. Regardless of their age,
nationality, gender, religion and ethnical backgrounds, all
employees are treated fairly without discrimination.
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Social (continued)
(1) Employment and labour practices (continued)

Employees’ health and safety

The Group regularly reviews the employees’ health and
safety procedure to safeguard employees’ well-being.
Annual medical checks and safety equipment are
provided to employees. Briefing, training, news and tips
are provided to employees regularly to raise their health
and safety awareness.

The Group has a sound and effective health and safety
procedure, no casualty from work in the reporting
period.

Development and training

The Group pays great attention to staff development and
training to enhance their technical skills and
professionalism. The Group provided its employees
multiple external and internal trainings in professional
skills, management, linguistics and business, and a total
of 575 hours (2018: 496 hours) training courses were
conducted in the reporting period.

orate Governance R?oﬁ.mtm
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BB EINE - AT - EEF
575/ B (T — )\ 4F - 496/)
) 2 5B IRE -

2019 2018
Employee training data & 8% 3l % 5t —T-hE —_T)N\F
Total number of employees EE @& 22 16
Total training hours S lIECYi 575 496
Average training hours per employee A 55 3l B ¢ 26 31
Employees’ communication ETX T

The Group strongly believes employees are the most
important assets of the Group and pays a key role in the
development of the Group. The Group, through various
communication channels, motivates its employees in the
reporting period. The Group adopts weekly meetings to
exchange working ideas, plans and to build up effective
communication channels among employees and
management. The Group also organizes group functions,
tea meetings to enhance loyalty and staff relationship.

Labour standard

The Group strictly follows the local labour jurisdiction in
employment management. No child nor forced labour
was involved in the Group's operations in the reporting
period.
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B. Social (continued)

2)

3)

Operating practices

Supply chain management

A strict tendering process is in place to provide an open,
fair and transparent platform for securing the suppliers
for procurement. The Group strictly follows the
procedures for supplier’s selection, decision making, and
contract signing to ensure the legality, reasonableness

and regulation of the process.

The main activities of the Group are trading in natural
uranium, electronic products and other products. The
main suppliers or brokers range from the USA, Europe,
Kazakhstan, South Korea, Taiwan and Hong Kong etc.
The business partners range top of their trade and are
reputable companies.

Product responsibility
The main business of the Group is not production of
products, thus this is not applicable.

Anti-corruption

The Group commits to manage all business without
undue influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and
fairness as its core values. All employees are required to
strictly follow the code of conduct and Group's policy to
prevent potential bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group’s code of conduct states clearly
the anti-bribery, forbidding the personal relationship with
suppliers and contractors and discipline requirements.
Employees are required to sign the code to ensure the
reputation of the Group would not be impaired by
fraud, dishonesty and bribery.

Community

Community Investment

The Group actively participates in community charity.
reporting period,
donations and courtesy visits supported the lesser

During the the Group through
community and improved their life quality. During the
Year, Mongolia office made donations and in the form
courtesy visits to support the local community of
Bayandun, Mongolia.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions laid down in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the "Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the Year, except that

(A)  when Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry resigned as an independent
non-executor director on 31st December, 2019, (i) the
Company had only two independent non-executive directors,
which fell below the minimum number required under Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, and did not have an independent
non-executive director with the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
("Appropriate Expertise”); (i) the Audit Committee did not
have an independent non-executive director with Appropriate
Expertise nor have a chairman as required under Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules; and (iii) each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee comprised an
executive director, a non-executive director and two
independent non-executive directors, which failed to meet the
requirements under Rule 3.25 and Code Provision A.5.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules, which
respectively require the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee comprising a majority of independent
non-executive directors. Following the appointment of
Mr. Chan Yee Hoi as an independent non-executor director
and chairman or member of committees of the Company on
9th March, 2020, the Company has complied with the
requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.21 and 3.25 of
the Listing Rules; and

(B) According to Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to other
business engagement, a non-executive director could not
attend the 2019 annual general meeting held on 30th May,
2019. However, at the 2019 annual general meeting, there
were other executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors present to enable the Board to develop a
balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders of
the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
are collectively responsible for overseeing the business and affairs of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) that aims at
enhancing the Company’'s value for stakeholders. The Board is
responsible for making all major matters of the Company including:
the approval and monitoring of all major policies of the Group,
monitoring financial and operating performance, ensuring the
integrity of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting systems,
the declaration of interim dividend, making recommendation of final
dividend or other distributions, overall strategies and budgets,
control and notifiable and

internal risk management systems,

connected transactions, nomination of directors and Company
Secretary and other significant financial and operational matters. The
day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered

into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board currently comprises a total of six members including one
executive director, two non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors (“INEDs"”), whose details are set
out on pages 36 to 40. Members of the Board have different
professional, industry experiences and backgrounds so as to bring in
valuable contributions and advices for the development of the
Group’s business. More than one-third of the Board are INEDs and
one of the INEDs has appropriate related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Directors have full access to accurate, relevant and timely
information of the Group through management and are able to
obtain independent professional advices on issues whenever deemed

necessary by the directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Regular meetings are held by the Board at least four times a year to

discuss strategies and business issues, including financial
performance of the Group, and additional meetings will be held
when necessary. The Company has held regular board meetings in
accordance with the Listing Rules, the CG Code and also the
Articles of Association of the Company, formal notice and board
meeting documents are also given in advance to all directors. During
the Year, the Board held four regular meetings and one other
meeting. Members of the Board can attend the meetings either in
person or through electronic means of communication. A record of
the directors’ attendance at regular Board meetings is set out on

page 32.

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
segregated in order to reinforce their independence and accountability.
Their respective responsibilities are clearly established and set out in
writing. The Chairman leads the Board’s workings and proceedings,
while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for implementing the
Group's strategies and policies and for conducting the Group’s
businesses.

THE TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the
period from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are

independent.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES

TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
(the “Model Code")
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all

Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by

the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the
accounting department, which is under the supervision of the
management of the Company, the directors ensure that the financial
statements of the Group have been properly prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The directors also ensure that the publication of the accounts of the

Group is in a timely manner.

A report of the independent auditor on the Group’s accounts is set
out in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to the CG Code, directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the Year, all directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by way of attending training seminar or reading material
on legal and regulatory subjects relevant to the Company’s business
or to the directors’ duties and responsibilities.

INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound and
effective
investments of the shareholders and assets of the Company at all
times.

internal control system for the Group to safeguard

The system of internal controls and risk management aims to help
achieving the Group’s business objectives, safeguarding assets and
maintaining proper accounting records for provision of reliable
financial information. However, the design of the system is to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets and to
risks of failure when business

manage rather than eliminate

objectives are being sought.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the Year on the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management system
covering all material controls in area of financial, operational and
compliance controls, various functions for risks management as well
as physical and information system security.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL AUDIT (continued)

Procedures have been designed for the business objectives,
safeguard asset against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure
proper maintenance of books and records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or publication, and to

ensure compliance with relevant legislations and regulations.

Internal Audit Department has conducted an on going independent
review on the effectiveness of the system of internal control and risk
management of the Group and considers it to be adequate and
effective. Reports on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control on difference areas had been submitted to the Audit
Committee. It is noted that there is no significant areas of concern

which may affect the effectiveness of the internal control system.

Throughout the Year, the Board is satisfied that the Group has fully
complied with the code provisions on risk management and internal
control as set out in Section C.2 of the CG code.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor,
Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as follows:

« 2 i 2R % P BB

g & ES =
&t
AEBERERBEZ - REZEREIEEH
AYEE MRELEGFTEEE RIS ARMHE
SR A sk B 2 A SE B RS BUE - DA R REAR

BRABANKERBIEZHER -

NEBZAPIHBB LR ASE B
HIERBRRER KR XRBEBGE
REM - ARAEETRHE 2 NPT
RBFEL S EREFRLZEGHEE -
BHEIB THREAGBXNEFENINEE
R Z B

REERN EEREMN AEE2EETHR
¥ERTREC2RAHAAHERREERRA
_DLBE:STIZ_\J'E”{'*K

1% 25 Bl BN &
WA - B AR AR BEREY « BE R
BT M LRI WT

Services rendered

Fees paid/payable

Fii 12 {4t BR 75 Eft EfEMe
2019 2018
“B-hE =—ZT—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Audit services Bt RH 2,150 1,500
Non-audit services FEE AT RS
(i.e. Taxation and reports to support the (B R WE
issuance of circular) ) 100 2,308
2,250 3,808
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee was first established in December
2002 and its terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
Group’s financial reporting system, internal control procedures, risk
management, assessing the adequacy of the human resources of the
Group’s accounting and finance department and maintaining good
and independent communications with the management as well as
external auditor of the Company. Its current members include:

Mr. Chan Yee Hoi (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Wu Ge

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of four members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs of
the Company. Mr. Chan Yee Hoi has appropriate related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of
them is employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or existing
auditor of the Company.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and also
had two meetings with the management and external auditors of
the Company. The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were
tabled to the Board for noting and for action by the Board where
appropriate. The attendance of each member is set out on page 32.

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s interim
and annual report for the year ended 31st December, 2019 and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control system and made recommendations to
the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’'s Remuneration Committee was established in
September 2005. Its current members include:

Mr. Cui Liguo (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Zhang Yi

Mr. Wu Ge

Mr. Chan Yee Hoi

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of five members of the Remuneration Committee are the
INEDs of the Company. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website.
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The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of directors and reviewing their
specific remuneration package for directors and senior management,
including terms of salary, discretionary bonus scheme, benefits in
kind, pension rights, compensation payments and other long-term
incentive schemes by reference to market conditions, performance of
the Group and the individual and corporate goals and objectives as
set by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year.
The minutes of the Remuneration Committee meeting were tabled
to the Board for noting and for action by the Board where
appropriate. The attendance of each member is set out on page 32.
During the meeting, the committee members discussed the policy for
the remuneration of executive director and senior management and
assessed the performance of executives.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
On 27th March, 2012,
Nomination Committee of the Company.

the Board approved the set up of the
Its current members
include:

Mr. Zhong Jie (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. Zhang Yi

Mr. Chan Yee Hoi

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of five members of the Nomination Committee are the
INEDs of the Company and the Chairman of the committee is the
Chairman of the Board. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board
at least annually; making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the
independence of the INEDs; and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year. The
attendance of each member is set out on page 32.
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REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of developing
and maintaining sound and effective corporate governance within
the Group and is committed to ensuring that an effective
governance structure is put in place to continuously review and
improve the corporate governance practices, including to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management; within the Group in light of the

evolving operating environment and regulatory requirements.

The Group has adopted appropriate policies and practices on
corporate governance and the Board would make recommendations
to the Group by reviewing the operation of the Group from time to
time. The Group has adopted a code of conduct and compliance
applicable to The Board
confirmed that the Group has complied with the legal and
regulatory requirements and ensures the Group’s compliance with

manual its employees and directors.

the CG Code and disclosure regarding corporate governance.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company believes that the diversity of board members will be
beneficial to the Company. Therefore, the Company has taken on
the Board Diversity Policy of the Board of Directors, ensuring that
the Company will consider the diversity of board members in a
number of ways when setting up the Board, including gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnic, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and service tenure. All appointments to the Board
are based on the principle of meritocracy.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
whereby the Company may pay dividends to the shareholders of the
Company by means of cash or shares. Any dividend distribution shall
be in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the Company and shall be distributed in a continuous, stable and
sustainable nature. The proposal to pay any dividend depends on the
dividend
announcement is subject to the approval of the shareholders before

absolute discretion of the Board, and any final

it can be implemented. In making any dividend payment, the board
shall also consider:

1. Retained surpluses and distributable reserves of the Company
and its subsidiaries;

2. The Group’s operating capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;
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3. The Group’s liquidity position;

4. the overall economic situation, the business cycle of the Group’s
business and the possible impact on the Company’s business,
the internal or external factors that make up the impact of
financial performance and positioning; and

5. Other factors that the Board considers relevant.

Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no
guarantee that dividends will be presented or announced at any
given time.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Li Philip Sau Yan (“Mr. Li"), is responsible
to the Board for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and
Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. Mr. Li has been
appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company since 5th
November, 2008. Mr. Li is also responsible for ensuring that the Board
is fully appraised of the relevant corporate governance developments
relating to the Group and facilitating the professional development of
the directors.

Mr. Li confirmed that he has complied with all the required
qualifications, experience and training requirements under Rule 3.28
and Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS" RIGHTS

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights and all
shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to the Articles
of Association of the Company, any shareholder entitled to receive
notice of and to attend and vote at a general meeting of the
Company is entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to
attend and vote instead of him.

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the Chairmen,
any member from the respective committees, must attend the
annual general meetings of the Company to address shareholders’
invited to attend the
Company’s annual general meetings and are available to assist the

queries. External auditor shall also be
Directors in addressing queries from shareholders relating to the
conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of their

auditor’s report.
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RIGHT TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING AND PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS

Pursuant to Article 68 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the
written requisition of any two or more members of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office, specifying the objects of the meeting and signed
by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
extraordinary general meetings of the Company. Extraordinary
general meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of
any one member of the Company which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office, specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at extraordinary general
meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the extraordinary general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of three months from the date of
deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

RIGHT TO PUT ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries can be in writing and sent for the attention of the
Company Secretary in one of the following ways:

1. By post: CNNC International Limited
Unit 3009, 30th Floor
No. 118 Connaught Road West
Hong Kong
By facsimile: (852) 2598 1010
By email: info@cnncintl.com
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sees high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationship with the Company’s shareholders.
The information provided will not only comply with the different
requirements in force but to provide additional information to
enhancing communications with shareholders and the investment
public. It is part of a continuous communication that encompasses
meetings, announcements to the market and circulars to
shareholders as well as periodic written reports in the form of
preliminary announcement of results and interim and annual
reports.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information of the Group is provided.

There was no significant change in the constitutional documents of
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the Company during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD, BEE EREEE FHE
= = 2
AUDIT, REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION E@REZEEEHMRER
COMMITTEES’ MEETINGS, GENERAL X & > A 8
MEETING
Regular Other Audit  Remuneration ~ Nomination Annual
Board Board Committee Committee ~ Committee General
Meetings ~ Meeting ~ Meetings Meeting Meeting  Meeting
1]
2R 2R BHZRg FHZSE REZEE RFEE
HER g3 g EE g3 XE
Total number of meetings held TEERRTLEELH 4 1 2 1 1 1
during the Year
Number of meetings attended: G-+ &
Chairman and Non-executive Director ~ ¥BEXHTEES
Mr. Yang Chaodong BEREA 4(100%)  1(100%) N/A N/A 1(100%)  1(100%)
(resigned on 4th May, 2020) (RZBE-ZFRAMAEM) THA TER
Chief Executive Officer and THARERTES
Executive Director
Mr. Cheng Lei BaiE 2 (100%) 1(100%) N/A 1(100%) N/A N/A
(appointed on 1st June, 2019 and (RZT-NERA-BLER TR rER  THA
resigned on 4th May, 2020) RZZZZERAMAHE)
Mr. Bai Donghai AREEE 2 (100%) NIA N/A NIA 1(100%) 1 (100%)
(resigned on 1st June, 2019) (RZZ-NEXA—BE) TER TR TEA
Non-executive Director FRTES
Mr. Li Zhihuang TEEESE 4 (100%) 0(0%) 2 (100%) 1(100%) N/A 0(0%)
(resigned on 4th May, 2020) (RZZ-ZFRANARHMT) TEA
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIFHTEE
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry RERBEE 4(100%) 1 (100%) 2 (100%) 1(100%) 1(100%) 1 (100%)
(resigned on 31st December, 2019) (RZE-NETZA=Z+-BEH)
Mr. Cui Liguo EfBEE 4(100%)  1(100%) 2 (100%) 1(100%)  1(100%) 1 (100%)
Mr. Zhang Lei RERE 4 (100%) 1(100%) 2 (100%) 1(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%)
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In accordance with the Group’s development strategy, the Group has
established a risk management system covering all the business
segments to monitor, assess and manage various risks in the
Group’s business activities.

The risk management system of the Group is established in line with
the global standard including the management of each business
unit, the risk management function of the Group and the internal
audit function.

The Board has identified the top risks of the Group and determined
how much risk the Board is willing to take to achieve the Group's
strategic objectives. The Group has also prepared a Risk
Management Policy based on the above risk and conduct regular
review of operational and financial risks as reported by each
business unit. Each business unit is required to identify risks on a
day-to-day basis, to report any major risk to the Group.

Based on the risk profile of each business unit, and take into
account the management control and corporate oversight at Group'’s
level, the Audit Committee and Internal Audit would map out a risk-
based internal audit plan each year.

The Board establishes or renews financial and credit facilities and
undertakes financial and credit transactions in accordance with the
financial policy of the Group.

FINANCIAL RISK

(1) Interest rate risk
The Group's working capital and fixed assets investment, apart
from internal funds, rely on bank financing and issue of
convertible bonds. All convertible bonds were fully redeemed
by 2013. As at 31st December, 2019, the Group had bank
borrowings of approximately HK$538,774,000 (at 31st
December, 2018: Nil), of which approximately
HK$253,761,000 (at 371st December, 2018: Nil) was being
utilized to fund the expansion of the Group's business trading
activities, and approximately HK$285,013,000 (at 31st
December 2018: Nil) was being utilized to fund the equity
investment of CNNC Leasing. During the Year, the Group's
variable-rate borrowings carry interest at a premium over Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate or London Interbank Offered Rate
or prevailing lending rate quoted by the People’s Bank of
China, as appropriate, which is ranged from 2.55% to 5.01%
per annum. The fluctuation of the lending interest rates could
have substantial effect to the Group’s finance costs.
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(2) Currency risk

The Group’s currencies are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollar (“HKD"), Renminbi (“RMB"), Mongolian Tugrigs (“MT")
and United States dollar (“USD"). The consolidated financial
statements of the Group are presented in HKD. However, the
income of the Group is mainly in USD, therefore, the
functional currency of the Group is set in USD. The Group has
to assess the fluctuations of the exchange rates of USD
against HKD, RMB and MT.

(A) USD vs HKD

HKD has a linked exchange rate system with USD. The
exchange rate has been kept for many years. Therefore
the risk in this area is relatively small. However, the
Group needs to consider the effect if the system is
removed. Nevertheless, the Group’s income and payment
to foreign suppliers are in USD which can compensate
the exchange risk should the system is removed.

(B) USD vs RMB
The Group has established an office in Shenzhen, its
expenses are paid in RMB. In 2019, the exchange rate of
RMB decreased about 1.2% against USD. The annual
budget of Shenzhen office is approximately
HK$8,000,000. The exchange rate risk effect in RMB is
insignificant to the Group.

(C) USD vs MT
The exchange rate of MT against USD dropped
approximately 3.9% in 2019. The inflation rate in
December 2019 in Mongolia was approximately 7.6%.
The bank deposit of Mongolian project is mainly in USD.
The Mongolia office settles its expenses in MT.
Therefore, the fluctuation of exchange rate of USD
against MT did not have any negative effect to the
Group in 2019. The fixed assets of Mongolian project are
recorded in USD, so there has been little effect in
exchange rate. The amounts of payables and receivables
of Mongolian project which are denominated in MT are
relatively small, so as the exchange rate risk in this area.

(3) Counterparty exchange rate risk

34

The buying and selling of natural uranium transactions of the
Group are denominated in USD, therefore the Group does not
have any risk in foreign currency exchange in business
transactions.

CNNC International Limited 2019 Annual Report

(2) HhE5 L B
AEEOEBEAEHRET AR
B OREENET - AEEOEAMN
BREAMERBT BRAEER
BAETAE  FUREEDLENE
RETL - ARENAMHE AETY B
ToARBMEHEENKERD -

(A) ZEiT##ET
BTBETEEEHY  WKE
DR ZE - A ERSAR
BYRN AT ARABEZE
IMEEBANEE . B K
EEMETRARYHETHE
HIME FE 7 IV A R 1E 3 IR 0
B 4 B LR

(B) ETLEHANRE
REEZRBERIIMEE BRI
ARSI - —T—HF AR
W ETTH A1 2% o R
EREFREEBRAOEL
8,000,0007T ° A& B ¥ AR E
KRB FETK-

(O ExHTRETHE
SHER-_ZE-NFHETER
BEERTHKAB3I% - FH R T
—AMFETZAHBRELY
76% EEBEBHERAETR
F ERHEENUAREEXNAE
A FIAZE—NEFETHF
HEEXREFHRBEURNEEENX
BEEFE XLHBBETEEEMN
ETAR  FIAEXR KRB TK -
MAR & B ARG BN - KK
TR e BE/) EXER TR
72

() XHHFEXREGEER
AEBZXAME S ERBELSIN
ELREM THEENER S XK
% o



OPERATIONAL RISK

(1)

(2)

Concentration risk

Currently, the income of the Group is derived from the natural
uranium, dispersed metals and electronics products trade. Of
the projects in hand, the production of Somina’s uranium
mine has been suspended and the mine is under maintenance
care; the Mongolian uranium project is still at the stage of
application of mining license, no products will be available in
the near future.

The Group has taken initiatives to investigate in the nuclear
power related business. To cooperate with the business
development of its holding company, the Group will look for
opportunities to expand its business activities. The Group will
also participate in the natural uranium market events to obtain
latest market information and enlarge the suppliers and
customers list, avoiding the reliance on a small number of
trading partners.

The Group has completed its investment in CNNC Leasing on
26th February, 2019 and CNNC Leasing would distribute no
less than 90% profit as dividends to the Group which would
have positive contributions to the cashflow of the Group.

Credit risk

The Group mainly confronted with credit risk resulting from
trade debtors that arising from sale of goods to customers.
The Group established credit policies and procedures to
analyse and identify the credit risks, set appropriate credit
limits and controls, monitor the risks on timely basis by means
of reliable management information systems. The Group
performs regular updates to enhance the credit policies in
order to cope with the changes in markets and practice of
credit risk management.

Individual credit assessments are performed on customers to
determine the applicable credit limits and terms. Regular
review on credit limits and terms are performed in order to
ensure those are comparable to the credit standing of

customers and the latest business environments.
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Profiles of Directors
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhong lJie, aged 58, was appointed as Non-Executive Director of
the Company and the Chairman of the Board with effect from 4th
May, 2020. He joined China Nuclear Engineering Company (4 B4%
T#2AA]) ("CNEC”) in 1989 as engineer. He was transferred to
China Nuclear Energy Industry Corporation (FEBIR FEETEHBRA
A]) ("CNEIC") and worked as engineer, deputy director of nuclear
power, deputy director, director, manager, assistant general manager
and deputy general manager of third import and import department.
Mr. Zhong was transferred to China National Uranium Co., Ltd (F
B AR AR) ("CNUC”) in 2019 as general manager and vice
secretary of Party Leadership Group, and became also deputy
director and vice secretary of Party Leadership Group of China
Nuclear Geology (FEI#Z TEHEF) (“CNG”). In April 2020, he
was appointed as member of Strategy and Management Advisory
Committee of China National Nuclear Corporation (B 1% T ¥ &£ &
B R 2 7)) ("CNNC"), the ultimate holding company of the
Company. Mr. Zhong is also a director of CNNC (Shanghai)
Enterprise Development Limited (F#%(E8)PEBEREBR A F)
("CNSHED"”). CNEC, CNEIC, CNUC, CNSHED and CNG are
subsidiaries of CNNC. Mr. Zhong graduated from Tsinghua University
(B#EKE) with a doctor degree in mechanic in 1989. He was
qualified as a senior engineer in the PRC.

Mr. Yang Chaodong, aged 55, had resigned as non-executive
director and chairman of the Board of the Company with effect
from 4th May, 2020. He joined The Fifth Research and Design
Institute of Nuclear Industry (“Fifth Nuclear Institute”) in 1987 and
was promoted to principal in 2005. He also acted as vice secretary
of Party Leadership Group of Fifth Nuclear Institute. Mr. Yang was
transferred to China Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd (“Nuclear
Power Engineering”) as vice general manager in 2008 and also
became secretary of Party Leadership Group of Nuclear Power
Engineering in 2009. In 2012, he was transferred and acted as the
chairman and secretary of Party Leadership Group of China
Zhongyuan Engineering Co., Ltd “Zhongyuan Co."”). Since 2019, he
was transferred and now acts as the chairman and secretary of Party
Leadership Group of Nuclear Power Engineering. Mr. Yang was a
director of Xie He Kong Co., Ltd (“XHK"). Fifth Nuclear Institute,
Nuclear Power Engineering, Zhongyuan Co. and XHK are subsidiaries
of China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC"”), the ultimate
holding company of the Company. Mr. Yang had been a delegate of
the Hai Dian District, Beijing, PRC for The National People’s
Congress from 2011 to 2016. Mr. Yang has obtained a bachelor
degree in Environmental Engineering in 1987 and a master degree in
Executive Master of Business Administration in 2013 from School of
Environment, Tsinghua University and Guanghua School of
Management of Peking University respectively. He was qualified as a
senior research engineer and has obtained qualifications for
Registered Utility Engineer in the PRC.

36  CNNC International Limited 2019 Annual Report

EERAE
IFREFQITES

AL S8k BEMAARRGFHNTE
ENEFREF LEHMBHE-_T-_TFH
AB - #AER—N\NLFMARBEZT
BRGNP &®ITR]D ELTIEE:
—NAA—FFAAFBRRTETERR ([FE
BTel) BEIXTIRM RERIIER E
BO=HMEIER EE &8 BLEE
REEREE N NFHAATHMESR
RAF([HREEE])  THELLEE B8
En NEHRTPEZTEME R ([HiZit
ERNEZRER BRR -RZZTEZZHF
MAFFBRZIEEBRAR QA (FixE
E)(ARBZ REERAR) BB EEER
HEEGZB - EAENEIHZ (L8 1
X¥BRARAA(PZEENDESE -PZT
BohERTE PREME FRHBERR
FiESHAPREBRTEEAMN - EBELEER
—NNNEFEERBERE #EWE BN
MIE% HEELIE -EXEBAES
BlIE= A TH26M 2 B8 -

BEAREL 555 CBAEARAFNTE
EREFRFFE AT _TFRANAR
EM - BRER—NANELFEMARIEER
MRt ((ZRk]) R_ZFTRFEE
ERERZAREZEEL R_TTN\F
HAFEZEIRERAR(ZEIRDE
BB kR _ZENFREEIREIRESR
EL - M- FHARERREINTIE
ERAR([FRAAF])  BEEFEREZR
EL - R-_T-NFRALOKEIRECLCES
EREZEL -HEEBEEBNERRA
A((HAMENES %Ak - &KEILRR &
RAR kBB RPEZIEZEEERA
A((PZEEE (AR ZHEERAF T
BEMA -BEEER _T——FE_FT—R
FECFELERMERREEBARKRAS
ARRR -BEER-NNEFEXRFE
AREREIRR BBISSL8U N=
Z-=FEENERABNREEE S - N
CERERABIRNERRLIBM -HEE
EEAMRERRRITEMZBE  KIE
FREGEMARERE IR EER -



Executive Director

Mr. Zhang Yi, aged 37, was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 4th May, 2020. He joined CNUC in 2007
and his
management,

roles included external affairs, secretarial, project

deputy director of the central administration
department, supervisor of the legal and audit department and vice
chief legal adviser. Mr. Zhang was transferred to the Geology and
Mining Division of CNNC in the overseas development sector, and
was in charge of legal affairs and overseas development projects.
Mr. Zhang joined the Central Planning Department of the Company
in 2013, and worked as deputy manager, manager in legal affairs,
overseas development and administration works. He joined CNUC as
manager in 2017 in overseas development department. In April
2019, he was appointed as general manager and director of CNNC
Overseas Uranium Holding Limited (F /8 98 3 25 % B BR 2 7))
("“COUH"), the immediate holding company of the Company.
Mr. Zhang is a director of CNUC (HK) Mining Corp., Limited (¥
HEE (BB EEAR A A)("CNUCHK”), CNUC (UK) Mining Co., Ltd
(PR (EE)BEABR AR ("CNUCUK”) and Langer Heinrich
Mauritius Holdings Limited (“LHMH"). CNUC, the Company, COUH,
CNUCHK and CNUCUK are subsidiaries of CNNC. LHMH is an
associate company of CNNC. Mr. Zhang graduated from China
Youth University of Political Studies (7 B & F B A
of social work and management,

Bf3), department
with a bachelor degree in
management in 2004. Mr.
University Law School (1t K2
in 2007. He was qualified as an enterprise legal adviser and holds

Zhang also graduated from Peking
7ABRT) with a master degree in law

professional qualification in law in the PRC.

Mr. Cheng Lei, aged 39, had resigned as Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 4th May, 2020. He joined CNNC Finance
Company, Limited (R BEREE R F]) (“CNNCFC”) in 2005.
Mr. Cheng was transferred to the finance department of China
("CNNC"), the ultimate holding
company of the Company and worked as a deputy director (&l &)
in 2008. Mr. Cheng was then transferred to China Zhongyuan
Engineering Co., Ltd (FEIF REIN TR AR E]) (“CZEC”) in 2016
and worked as assistant supervisor (&]F1F) and then supervisor (%

National Nuclear Corporation

f£) to be in charge of its finance department. Mr. Cheng is also a
director of China National Nuclear Corporation (Shenzhen) Limited
(RIIPZEBABRAFT) ("CNNCSZ") and a supervisor (E55) of AF
Technology, Limited (ER G REKRMHODBR ARG (“AF Tech”).
CNNCFC, CZEC and CNNCSZ are subsidiaries of CNNC. CNNC is a
substantial shareholder of AF Tech. Mr. Cheng graduated from
University of Science and Technology of China (71 B &} 2 £ fif X 2)
with a master degree in statistics and finance in 2005. He was
qualified as an economist in the PRC.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Wu Ge, aged 33, was appointed as Non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from 4th May, 2020. He joined CNNC
Northern Uranium Co., Ltd (F#Zdt 7 8ZE AR A7) (“CNNCNU") in
2010 as head of accounting department and assistant director.
Mr. Wu was transferred to CNUC in 2019 as head of accounting
and assistant director in the finance and capital management
department. CNNCNU and CNUC are subsidiaries of CNNC. Mr. Wu
graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (81t
Bf 48 K 8) with a bachelor degree in accounting in 2010. He was
qualified as an accountant in the PRC.

Mr. Li Zhihuang, aged 47, had resigned as Non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from 4th May, 2020. He is a director of
China National Nuclear Corporation (Shenzhen) Limited (ZIIIFF#Z %
El BB 2 7)) (“CNNCSZ”) and XHK. He joined Shenzhen Iron Eagle
Plastics Company (7 JIl & & 28 B AL 2 7)) (“SIE”), a member
company of CNNCSZ, in 1994 as technician, vice manager and
manager. He was transferred to CNNCSZ as vice supervisor of the
general manager office of CNNCSZ in 2008. He then worked as
investment manager of CNNCSZ in 2011 and was later promoted to
vice general manager and general manager of CNNCSZ in 2016.
During 2013 to 2016, Mr. Li worked as the general manager of
CNNC Nuclear Power Service Co, Ltd (FiZiZE &R E KRB HR A F)
("NPS”) and now acts as the general manager of XHK. During the
period from June to November 2017, he worked as vice president of
the Company and was in charge of the trading business of the
Group. CNNCSZ, SIE, NPS and XHK are subsidiaries of CNNC, the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from
School of Mechatronics & Vehicle Engineering, Chongging Jiaotong
University (EERBASZMEHEBH TR EM) with a bachelor
degree in Vehicle Engineering in 1994.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cui Liguo, aged 50, is currently a founding partner of Guantao
Law Firm which is a law firm in Beijing, PRC and the Chairman of
its Management Committee. He has over 25 years of experience in
legal sector, and holds independent directorship in the board of
directors of several companies, such as APT Satellite Holdings Ltd. (a
corporation listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 01045), China
National Software & Service Co., Ltd. (a corporation listed on the
600536),
Pharmaceutical Group Industry Co., Ltd. (a corporation listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600380), China Coal Xinji
Energy Co., Stock
Exchange, stock code: 601918), Essence Securities Co., Ltd., and

Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: Joincare

Ltd. (a corporation listed on the Shanghai

Beijing Life Insurance Co., Ltd. He is also a member of the Finance
& Securities Committee of All China Lawyers Association; and the
legal counselor in the internal control group of securities issuing of
Guodu Securities Co., Ltd. and Bohai Securities Co., Ltd. Mr. Cui
graduated from the China University of Political Science and Law
with a bachelor degree in laws in 1991. He also holds a master
degree in laws from the same university.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 50, currently serves as assistant of general
manager of Beijing Zhongguancun Dajie Securities sales department
of China Great Wall Securities Co., Ltd. (R #EH KB AR A A), a
company Mr. Zhang joined since 1994. Mr. Zhang has over 25 years
of experience in the securities industry. Mr. Zhang graduated from
Renmin University of China in 1996, major in commercial and
Mr. Zhang holds the qualification of
settlement practitioner granted by Beijing Stock Exchange.

economic management.
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Mr.
banking, corporate finance, capital markets, direct investment, asset

Chan Yee Hoi, aged 70, has over 40 years’ experience in

management and financial management. Since 2013, Mr. Chan has
been an independent non-executive director of Hong Fok Land
International Limited, an unlisted public company incorporated in
Hong Kong, which is principally engaged in property development
business. Prior to Mr. Chan’s retirement in 2019, he had worked
with various American banks in Hong Kong, investment banks,
corporate finance advisory, securities and fund management
companies and had gained substantial financial management
expertise. Between 2004 and 2015, he served as an independent
non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee of
Winfoong International Limited (its name was changed to China
Graphene Group Limited in 2016), a company listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), which was principally engaged in property management
and horticultural services. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Social Science degree in 1971, and
was a licensed representative licensed under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance to engage in type 1 (dealing in securities), type 4
(advising on securities), type 5 (advising on futures contracts) and
type 9 (asset management) regulated activities.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr.
Financial Controller of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Company in

Li Philip Sau Yan, aged 61, is the Company Secretary and

November 2008. He had over 30 years of experience in auditing,
Mr. Li
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and

accounting and financial management. is an associate
Wales and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Li is a graduate of Imperial College of the

University of London and holds a Bachelor of Science degree.
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The directors present their annual

report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2019 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and a joint
operation are set out in notes 36, 14 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements. The market and business review are set out in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 55.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the Year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$162,840,000.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date
of this report were:

Chairman and non-executive director
Mr. Zhong lie (appointed on 4th May, 2020)
Mr. Yang Chaodong (resigned on 4th May, 2020)

Executive director

Mr. Zhang Yi (appointed on 4th May, 2020)

Mr. Cheng Lei (appointed on 1st June, 2019 and
resigned on 4th May, 2020)

Mr. Bai Donghai (resigned on 1st June, 2019)

Non-executive director
Mr. Wu Ge (appointed on 4th May, 2020)
Mr. Li Zhihuang (resigned on 4th May, 2020)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry (resigned on 31st December, 2019)

Mr. Chan Yee Hoi (appointed on 9th March, 2020)
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In accordance with Article 95 and Article 112 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Zhong Jie, Mr. Zhang Yi, Mr. Wu
Ge, Mr. Cui Liguo and Mr. Chan Yee Hoi will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Mr. Cui Liguo and Mr. Zhang Lei had entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing 11th
November, 2017. Mr. Chan Yee Hoi has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing 9th
March, 2020. Mr. Zhang Yi has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of 3 years commencing 4th May, 2020.
Upon agreement of both parties the abovementioned service
contracts shall continue thereafter until terminated by either party
giving to the other party not less than three months prior written
notice.

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the
period from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st December, 2019, none of the directors nor their associates
had any shares or underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme adopted on 11th December, 2002 (“2002
Share Option Scheme”) was expired and terminated on 11th
December, 2012. A new share option scheme was adopted by the
Company on 3rd June, 2013 (“2013 Share Option Scheme”) and its
particulars are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements. No share option had been granted under the 2002
Share Option Scheme and 2013 Share Option Scheme since their
adoption. The purpose of the 2002 Share Option Scheme and the
2013 Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the best available
personnel, to provide additional incentive to employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and shareholders of the Group and to promote
the success of the business of the Group.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE
OPTIONS” above, at no time during the Year was the Company or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st December, 2019, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of
the Company.

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
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("CNNC Overseas”) (Note)
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China National Uranium Co., Ltd. (formerly known as  Corporate interest 326,372,273 66.72%
China Uranium Corporation Limited (“CNUC")) (Note)
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China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC") (Note) Corporate interest 326,372,273 66.72%
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Note:  CNNC Overseas is the immediate holding company of the Company, which is wholly owned
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Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31st December, 2019.

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

shares.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions are disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS, EMPLOYEES AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good

relationship with its suppliers, customers, employees and other
stakeholders to meet the Group’s immediate and long-term goals.
Information about major customers is disclosed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group’s purchases were made
from a number of suppliers. The Group intends to seek and
negotiate with major uranium product traders in the market with a
view to expand its supplier and customer base. So far as the
directors are aware, at no time during the Year have the directors,
their close associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to
of the

Company’s share capital) had any interest in the major suppliers and

the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
customers of the Group.

The Company creates a framework for motivating staff and an

formal communication channel in order to maintain healthy

relationships with its employees and other stakeholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.
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The emoluments of the directors of the Company are recommended
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group is
engaged in uranium resources business and one of its main
objectives is to become an environment friendly corporation.
Minimizing in consumption of resources and adopt of environmental
best practices across the Group’s businesses are the commitment of
the Group to conserve and improve the environment. The Group
shall make every endeavour to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopt effective measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste
reduction.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to complying with the requirements under
the Companies Law (Revised) under the laws of Cayman Islands, the
Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the SFO under the laws
of Hong Kong. The subsidiaries in Mongolia are also committed to
complying with the requirements under the Law of Mongolia.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company, or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every
director is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has taken out
and maintained directors’ liability insurance throughout the Year,
which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and directors of
the subsidiaries of the Company.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

The following circumstances giving

rise to the obligations of

disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules continue to

exist after the year ended 31st December, 2019.

Terms used herein have the same meaning as those defined in the

announcement made by the Company on 18th February, 2019

pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules (the “Announcement”).

(1

46

On 18th February, 2019,
Announcement that CNNC
Investor,

the Company made the
(HK) Limited, the
into the Facility

International
as the borrower, has entered

Agreement (the “Facility Agreement”), with a financial
institution for a term loan facility in the principal amount of
up to HK$300,000,000 (the “Loan”) for the purpose of
financing the proposed investments in CNNC Financial Leasing
Company Limited (“CNNC Leasing”). The Loan is repayable
over a period of 36 months (subject to extension to 72
months as provided in the Facility Agreement) from the date
of the Facility Agreement. Pursuant to the Facility Agreement,
among other matters, early repayment of the Loan may be
required (together with interests accrued thereon and other
amounts payable thereunder) upon occurrence of any of the
following events: (i) the Stated-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC
("SASAC") ceases to directly wholly own the China National
Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC”); (i) CNNC ceases to wholly
own HE P RHIITIERAR R A

Engineering Corporation, “China Zhongyuan”),

(China Zhongyuan
a company
incorporated in the PRC which is assigned by CNNC to provide
a letter of comfort in relation to the Loan; (iii) CNNC, together
with the management and staff who are currently employed by
CNNC and/or any of its subsidiaries, cease to collectively own,
directly or indirectly, majority of the share capital in the
Company, or the Company ceases to be a subsidiary of CNNC;
(iv) CNNC ceases to remain the single largest shareholder of
the Company; and (v) CNNC ceases to maintain control over
the management and the board of directors of China
Zhongyuan and the Company. As at the date of the
Announcement, the Company was owned as to approximately
66.72%
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CNNC (which is wholly-
owned by the SASAC), and the controlling Shareholder.

by CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited, an

CNNC International Limited 2019 Annual Report
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Details of the Loan are set out below:

18th
February, 2019 and executed by the

Facility Agreement: The facility agreement dated

Borrower, the Mortgagor, and the
Lender;

Borrower: CNNC International (HK) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company;

Mortgagor: The Company;

Lender: Chong Hing Bank Limited; and

Loan: Term loan facility in the principal amount

of up to HK$300,000,000, which is
repayable over a period of 36 months
(subject to extension to 72 months as
provided in the Facility Agreement) from
the date of the Facility Agreement.

Terms used herein have the same meaning as those defined in
the announcement made by the Company on 19th August,
2019 pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules. In March
2019, China Nuclear International Corporation as the borrower
(the “"Borrower”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, accepted the terms of a general banking facility of
a banking institution for trade finance in the amount of up to
US$30,000,000 (the “Facility”). Utilization of the Facility is
conditional upon the prior approval of the bank, and each
drawdown is repayable within 150 days.

Pursuant to the Facility, among other matters, the Company
and the Borrower undertake and procure with the bank that,
throughout the life of the Facility: (i) The State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council (the "SASAC") of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") shall maintain directly 100% equity interest in China
National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC”); (ii) CNNC shall
maintain (directly or indirectly) 100% equity interest in China
Zhongyuan Engineering Corporation, a company incorporated
in the PRC which is assigned by CNNC to provide a letter of
comfort in relation to the Facility; and (iii) CNNC shall
maintain (directly or indirectly) not less than 51% equity
interest in the Company. As at 30th June, 2019, the Company
is owned as to approximately 66.72% by CNNC Overseas
Uranium Holding Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of CNNC (which is wholly-owned by the SASAC).
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EERBEE w0

2019, China Nuclear
as the borrower,

On 2nd September, International
(the

wholly-owned subsidiary of CNNC International Limited (the

Corporation “Borrower") a direct
“Company”), entered into a general banking facility agreement
with a banking institution for the purchase of electronic
components or other goods acceptable to the bank for its
trading business in the amount of up to US$30,000,000 (the
“Facility”). The Facility is uncommitted facility and available
commitment may be cancelled by the bank at any time. Each

drawdown is repayable within 60 days.

Pursuant to the Facility, among other matters, early repayment
of the Facility may be required (together with interests accrued
thereon and other amounts payable thereunder) if China
National Nuclear Corporation (FEZ T ¥ £ B HR Q7))
("CNNC") ceases to be the major shareholder and beneficially
own (directly or indirectly) at least 66.72% of the issued share
capital of the Company except for the prior written consent
from the bank, such consent not be unreasonably withheld. As
at the date of this announcement, the Company is owned as
to approximately 66.72% by CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CNNC (which
is wholly owned by The State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council (Bl #%Bz B &
BEEEBEEEZEEE) of the People’s Republic of China).

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-

appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the

Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhong lJie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6th May, 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CNNC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CNNC
Limited (the
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to

International “Company”) and its subsidiaries
151, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31st December, 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31st December, 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial

under those standards are further described

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”),
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the

and we have fulfilled our other ethical

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These

judgment, were of most significance in our

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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VBB E @

Key audit matter

=t SR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB ET A HARESSIRETRE

Impairment loss recognised on exploration and
evaluation assets

By IR R GF 14 8 & 2 i (HFF 1

We identified the impairment loss recognised on exploration and
evaluation assets as a key audit matter due to its significance to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, combined with the significant judgments
made by management in performing the impairment assessment
of the assets.

BPIBA MR R EEE O RBERATHRBAREAEE AR
E%ﬂﬁ*ﬁaﬁ”ﬂiﬁ/\%ﬁé&ﬁi\ﬁﬂ’i@%éi’%%ik TN EEEE

EITRAEERBET I ERFAE -

During the year ended 31st December, 2019, the impairment loss
of Group’s exploration and evaluation assets in relation to
uranium mining in Mongolia (“Mongolian Mining Project”) of
HK$210,367,000 is charged to statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and represented 95.9% of the
Group's loss for the year.

REBEE-ZE—NWF+_A=1+—HILEE E£EEHEZLH
%EEHUaﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁnz@%&&ﬁééﬁ@%%ﬁ%
#210,367,0007Lit ARGrE Em Lk EMmiiak SR E5EF

W& 18 295.9% °

Under HKFRSs, exploration and evaluation assets shall be assessed
for impairment when facts and circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of exploration and evaluation assets may exceed
its recoverable amount.

BREEEMBHREEDN HRATEEEENEEFERBERERA
FHEVEEBEATKRESER  AZRMERETHMGE-

As disclosed in notes 4 and 13, the management performed an
impairment assessment of the exploration and evaluation assets.
The recoverable amount is estimated using fair value less costs of
disposal which requires significant degree of judgment by
management in selecting the valuation techniques and applying
key assumptions and inputs to the impairment assessment model.
Key inputs include market price of natural uranium and market
observable transactions of similar transactions related to the
acquisition of companies which holding mining project of
preliminary stage and adjustment made to reflect the market price
of natural uranium, taking into account the notice from the
relevant Mongolian authority, latest status of the Lawsuit (as
defined in note 13), regulatory requirements in Mongolia and the
arrangement for the Group’s mining licenses.

M AR M 13 EREHHRRAEEEET TR
BTl - M AT E € ERE A FERB KA H$%§
%@EZ@K%%ML&E%&m&%%%ﬁfﬂﬁﬁkiﬁ
ERENEEE  BEMmE  MENTERE  UFERET
B BRETS TARNERAVRREBEEN AT LEH
=R ﬁﬁ%rﬁﬁﬂ(m%ﬁ%ﬁw>'§ém%ﬁ%
SKEA R B RAERT Al E )L HE ©

The impairment loss recognised on the exploration and evaluation
assets by the directors of the Company are with reference to the
valuation performed by an independent qualified professional
valuer (the “Valuer”).
WRETEEERERLAAERAEFLERFH LS ERTRT
AN EITE R EE L (TFTRADD) -
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of exploration and evaluation assets included: ‘
?@%&#ﬁﬁéZﬁﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@
T

J Discussing with management the progress of the
Mongolian Mining Project and examining the
minutes, correspondences and other supporting
documents in relation to the Group's
negotiation and communication with the
government officials of Mongolian authorities;

. ﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁZﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁ
W OEEEESREEHERBNABZEZER
Qﬁzgﬁﬁﬁ BR 1 K2 EL fth 35 BA X4

o Examining the correspondence with the relevant
Mongolian authorities, obtaining legal advices
from external Mongolian legal adviser on status
of the Group’s application for the mining
licenses, any change in regulatory requirements
in Mongolia that would adversely affect the
application of the mining licenses and the
validity of the Group's exploratlon licenses;

b %‘TFQ\ E .EERQF%%TKEA:—J E)]Lr HE{—JE
R RS BN EEE T RYENE D)
Bk &% ﬁéﬁ“é%& &R BT
AEZANEERIDZZERNERZER

o Understanding the Group’s impairment
assessment process, including the valuation
techniques adopted and the key assumptions
and inputs used;

. THR ESE2RENGBERE  BEKATMG
&m&ﬁ%%@ﬂF“&%A%F

J Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer and verifying its
qualifications; and

o  FHMEBUMMERMABEN O REELIAR
EEMOHEXER R

J Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and inputs used by the Valuer with
the involvement of our internal valuation expert.

. B AT AR R AR B RR R ABUR 2
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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BUBRHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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BUBRHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Woo King Wa.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
6th May, 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SEeRERAMZERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2019 #HE-_ZT—-—hF+-_A=+—HBLFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BETR BT T
Revenue WA 5 3,169,836 1,992,052
Cost of sales 55 & R (3.137,195) (1,969,367)
Gross profit EH 32,641 22,685
Other income and gains (losses) H AW A Rz (B X) 7,656 2,464
Net exchange losses FEHBR (2,597) (535)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HMAX (3,560) (1,982)
Administrative expenses T (21,918) (18,340)
Impairment loss of exploration and MR R EERE
evaluation assets B 13 (210,367) —
Share of result of an associate R ER RN 14 (1,896) —
Finance costs B 75 Ak AR 7 (17,365) —
(Loss) profit before tax B ® AT (E518) & 7 8 (217,406) 4,292
Income tax (expense) credit e (A ER 9 (1,917) 19,321
(Loss) profit for the year FAR(ERE) A (219,323) 23,613
Other comprehensive expense Hit2EHAX
Items that will not be reclassified to BT EEFDHZ B
profit or loss: ZIHEA -
Exchange differences arising on translation & & 2 5| § ¥ & £
to presentation currency ZEHER (1,646) (2,625)
Fair value change on investment in equity XA FEFAEMEE
instrument of fair value through other WamzBRAREEZ
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") NEEED (4,176) —
Item that maybe reclassified subsequently H#E S SEHHIESE
to profit or loss: Bm2EA
Share of exchange difference JEMGEE & R Al E A
an associate ZEHZEH (6,627) —
Other comprehensive expense for the year &R E ih 2 E % (12,449) (2,625)
Total comprehensive (expense) income RAFRIHEBAEBEER
for the year attributable to owners of ZHE () BALRE
the Company (231,772) 20,988
Basic (loss) earnings per share BREXR(EE)RFT 11 HK(44.8) cents HK4.8 cents
& (aa.8)1l 7B 4,81
PREEEEREAT —ZT-hFEFR 55



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

GEMBRRER

At 31st December, 2019 R=FT—NAF+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Ff 51 BETRT BT T
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment WME - WER&EE 12 12,605 15,048
Exploration and evaluation assets WREFEEE 13 — 211,151
Interests in associates REE QA2 R 14 422,069 —
Right-of-use asset EREEE 15 556 —
Deposit paid for acquisition of equity RWER AT ERA
instrument at fair value through other H bW as 2 IR
comprehensive income TEREZEMK 16 — 2,561
435,230 228,760
Current assets RENEE
Inventories e 18 340,858 100,380
Trade and other receivables and FEW B 5 BR R I B e
prepayments W R IR LA 2 B A 3008 19 251,509 103,710
Restricted cash PR 117 3Kk 20 19,004 —
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 20 100,543 177,917
711,914 382,007
Current liabilities mENE &
Trade, bills and other payables and accruals ENES ZEKXEM
JE A SR TE LA K2 FE AT
R 21 241,622 24,549
Contract liabilities AHaE 22 25,617 15,520
Bank borrowings RITHER 23 538,774 —
Lease liability HEAaE 24 331 —
Amount due to an intermediate holding ER—REP N ERA A
company IE 25 1,901 1,910
Amount due to ultimate holding company FE A B AR 1 R A B R IB 25 1,977 1,977
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ANIERSES =G
IR 25 140 117
Income tax payable FERTFTIS AL 1,632 —
811,994 44,073
Net current (liabilities) assets mEN(BR) BEFE (100,080) 337,934
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRSHER 335,150 566,694
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (onineq

REMHERRE @

At 31st December, 2019 R=-—ZE—h&F+=-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 BETR BT
Non-current liability EL A/ 0=R
Lease liability HEARE 24 228 —
Net assets EEFHE 334,922 566,694
Capital and reserves BARGEE
Share capital fi% A 26 4,892 4,892
Share premium and reserves % 7 v B & G 15 27 330,030 561,802
Equity attributable to owners of the AT HERA ANEL#ER
Company 334,922 566,694

The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 151 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 6th
May, 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhong lie
#ER
DIRECTOR
EF

FSSEISIBEZREYBRRER =%
FHANBEHESZSIEREREEL I
HTIESEREFE:

Zhang Yi
k&
DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GREFEBR

For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE-_ZT—-hAF+ A=+ —HIEFE

Non-
Share Share Capital distributable FvTOCI Merger  Statutory Translation Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BRATE
AR
FaA3ik 2@
kA& RbEE EXEE e KERE SRR  EERE  EXRGE  EHER RS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BSTr B¥Tr BETr B%Tr E%Trn #%Trn BT BBt BETn EETr
(Note 26) (Note 27)  (Note 27) (Note 27)  (Note 27)
(Mi3k26) (F&ar)  (M7) (F&ar)  (Mr)
At 1st January, 2018 RZZ-\$5-A-H 4,892 868,805 80,827 16,584 — 127 - 12,055 (437,584) 545,706
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - - - 23613 23,613
Exchange differences arising on RERELZERZE
translation — — — — — — — (2,625) — (2,625)
Total comprehensive (expense) FR2EFER)RA
income for the year k] — — - — — — — (2,625) 23,613 20,988
At 31st December, 2018 RZZ-N\F
+-A=f-H 4,892 868,805 80,827 16,584 - 127 — 9,430 (413,971) 566,694
Loss for the year FRiE - - - - - - - —  (219323)  (219,323)
Exchange differences arising on BRERELCERER
translation - - - - - - - (1,646) - (1,646)
Fair value change on investment in AT EF AL 2 ERS
equity instrument at FVTOC| LRAREZ
RATEEY - - - - (4,176) - - - - (4,176)
Share of exchange difference of EIEBERRZ
an associate ERES - - - - - - - (6.627) - (6.627)
Total comprehensive expense FR2ERAZEER
for the year — - - — (4,176) - — (8,273) (219,323)  (231,772)
Reclassification adjustment of FVTOCI R 1L R KA FE
reserve upon derecognition of an STARMRENE R
equity instrument at FVTOCI TREZEATEFA
iz E e
REZERHRDE - - - - 4176 - - - (4,176) -
Transfer of profits to statutory RNENEEHE
reserve - - - - - - 635 - (635) -
At 31t December, 2019 RZF-1&
+ZRA=+-H 4,892 868,805 80,827 16,584 - 127 635 1,157 (638,105) 334,922
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE=Z—-—hALF+-_A=+—HBLEFE

2019 2018
—E-NE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES )
(Loss) profit before tax b B R0 (E518) /& 7 (217,406) 4,292
Adjustments for: IR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BEREETE 868 1,081
Depreciation of right-of-use asset FEREEENE 111 —
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment LEWE  BEKEE
Z B8 1,575 —
Amortisation of loan front-end fee B R ATER B A 2,481 —
Impairment loss of exploration and evaluation assets WREFEEERE
IEES 210,367 —
Share of result of an associate FEMRE 2 N R A 1,896 —
Finance costs B 15 IR 14,884 —
Interest income F B U A (881) (2,041)
Operating cash flows before movements in working HEECEDAI 2 KE
capital ReRE 13,895 3,332
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEGEm R (240,478) 80,396
Increase in trade and other receivables and prepayments [ 4 & 5 BR 7k & H b i Uk
FIE LA R B ROA
(38 0 s (149,937) (29,005)
Increase (decrease) in trade, bills and other payables BREZ ZEBEREM
and accruals J& < 3R TE LA K% 8 5T RO
3250 Of ) 217,793 (134,084)
Increase in contract liabilities aRBEEM 10,097 15,326
Net cash used in operations RERE 2B e (148,630) (64,035)
Income tax paid X ABIA (273) (39)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES AEREES 2R FRE (148,903) (64,074)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERY
Payments for investment in equity instrument at FVTOCI AW R A FE AE
WeszBETIAE
(N (432,207) (2,561)
Placement of restricted cash U R #1F 3 (19,004) —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVME BERXE (170) (429)
Payments for rental deposits XHHEERE (7) —
Interest received 2 F B 881 2,041
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HEW% - BE M & E 133 —
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES AEREES 2
REFHE (450,374) (949)
hREBRAERAR —T—-AEFiHR 59



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (ontineq

REBEERER @

For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE-_ZT—-hAF+ A=+ —HIEFE

2019 2018
—T-NE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES & E B
New bank borrowings raised RITERK 795,380 —
Advance from fellow subsidiaries RERREMBRRZBK 23 —
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (248,703) —
Payment of loan front-end fee YNERATHEA (8,792) —
Interest paid S E (14,720) —
Repayment of lease liability ERAEAE (108) —
Repayment to ultimate holding company EERKIERATZEK — (706)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES ke (AE)BREEHZ
& F 523,080 (706)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RekReEFBWRD
FEE (76,197) (65,729)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1ST JANUARY R—R—RHELEHS
ZEY 177,917 247,743
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES SNEEERZB 2B (1,177) (4,097)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31ST DECEMBER, RekReFBEBMR
represented by bank balances and cash +ZA=+—82"
HIRITAE 8RR IR & K 100,543 177,917
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBERRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE=Z—-—hALF+-_A=+—HBLEFE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

CNNC International Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company’s immediate holding company is CNNC Overseas
Uranium Holding Limited (“CNNC Overseas”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Company’s intermediate
holding company and ultimate holding company are China
Ltd. and FEZTEEEBBR AR
(China National Nuclear Corporation “CNNC"), a state-owned
"PRC"),

National Uranium Co.,

entity in the People’s Republic of China (the
respectively.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars (“US$").
presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") for the convenience

The consolidated financial statements are

of the shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out
in notes 36 and 14 respectively.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Company, the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light of
the fact that the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$219,323,000 for the year ended 31st December, 2019 and
as of that date, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$100,080,000. The Group had not complied with certain
financial covenant as stipulated in the bank loan agreement of
the Group’s bank borrowing of HK$285,013,000 outstanding
as at 31st December, 2019, which requires the Group to meet
certain ratio of consolidated total liabilities to consolidated
total assets at all times, after recognition of the impairment
loss of exploration and evaluation assets of HK$210,367,000 in
the consolidated financial statements as at 31st December,
2019. Accordingly, such bank borrowings are repayable on
demand.

1.

TRRERER QA

—REHREREE

R EBRERAR (AR RER
ERBATEENSHSEMAIA
EREARDA  HRGEES BB
ARSHABRTBHRMA) L -

ARBZEEBERABR/NEABEM
PRI ZBRARREEINEERAE
RAR(HRZEIN]) KRREFER
B ARB 2R N ERRARREE
BARDRBTEMEERAE MR
BZIXEEBERARA(HFEZE
ED-FEEERTEARKMNE
(FEDzBEERE-

ARBZAMBPERRETEZLEME
ZHURFRIABEFR] —ERE -

ApmlzhgE®RET(ET) -
HRARBANREBBELD  BHTER
R GZaMBRRABE(EEDZ2
5l

ARARBEREERAR -HEXBHE
NalMBERRZ EBEE D AER
Mt sE36%14

ERAEEHE_T—hLF+=A
ST HLESEEEFEBEBOBE
219,323,000 - RRE BAAREEN R E
B EFE A H % %100,080,000 c XA
AEEAEREARNRIANAHYBERE
KREBEZETAEENRKRD
Me-AEBR_ZT—HLE+ A
Tt HBAREENRITEROBE
285,013,000t W RITERBHE R KA
ERNRLEFBEOE  EXAEE 2
MEEHBERAEHESHEERLED
—EHER-R_ZT—hALF+=A
=T —BEGaMBom&xPERYE
KM EERMBERERXOBESE
210,367,0007C * ZEFMITEREKRE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE-_ZT—-hAF+ A=+ —HIEFE

62

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

(continued)

Subsequent to 31st December, 2019, the Group has applied
for a waiver from the bank for such non-compliance and the
bank agreed not to demand immediate repayment of the
entire borrowings or any part thereof. As at the date of
approval of the consolidated financial statements, such waiver,
which includes a short term adjustment on certain ratio, for
the non-compliance of the covenant as stated in the bank
loan agreement has been granted by the bank.

The directors of the Company have performed an assessment
of the Group’s future liquidity and cash flows, taking into
account the short term adjustment on certain financial
covenant in respect of bank borrowing, the Group’s operating
cash flows and available unutilised short-term banking
facilities.

The directors of the Company consider that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to
meet its financial obligations for at least the next twelve
months from the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative

HKFRS 9 Compensation

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and
HKAS 28 Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

CNNC International Limited 2019 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ontineq
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For the year ended 31st December, 2019 HEZE=ZZ—hAF+=-ZA=+—HLEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("H KFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS
17"), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as containing a
lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts which
already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1st January,
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

TRRERER QA

FEF #a] & &85 & A
i‘%#ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ(l’é%ﬁﬂ‘%iﬁ

FEEEFHERHEEMBR
HEAMHT RIERT =

B TR E SN - A FE R R AT R
ERZEEMBREEMNEREER
AERPBEFEZBHRER RN
E/SRBREGEAMBRRZEELE
EAFE-

EEMBREERFE 167
[FE]

SERAEEERERBEEMBERS
FERIE165 - BEMBREERF16
SRR EEGFENENTRIEE] R
AR -

HE /T £
SECEERATEB N5 LERE
REBGHERNE 175 NEE (BRY
BREREZES)— RBFSR(E
EXHREREEE IR AHENS
WimEREEY RS ERF165 -
BYEHTAIARBFRBEEHENS
MERAZER - Bt £E Y EEFH
FHERERERBMACFENSL

HR T NF-A—HAHZEFTL
FEANENNE  SEREEEM
B EERIE165 A& AR EEAE
ENEE  KFHANRLREEHEE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2019 HEZE=ZZT—hAhF+=-_A=+—HLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a leasee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application,
1st January, 2019.

As at 1st January, 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liability and right-of-use asset at amounts equal to the related
lease liability by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition.
Comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group elected not to recognise
right-of-use asset and lease liability for leases with lease term
ends within 12 months of the date of initial application to
leases previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17,
on a lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the
respective lease contracts.

a] & A&
HER(
EIJJ)(é‘:sf'

FEEEFHERHEEMBR
HEAMHT RIERT =

&Ehi
B %5 8

L
i 38
>
I
a2

EEUBREERE165
[H#E =
1E B #FH A

SECEVERBTEMBRS ERE
165 RAFERERNERBH(-Z
—NFE—-—HA—RB)®HR -

RZZE—NhEF—A—HB SEERE
75 B 15 3R 45 E BI 551657 C8(b)(ii) B 3B UK
3 BREINBEAB RS FEMN
EREHHEEEBENFEREEE -
BRERTFEY -

RBER SEHERTEMBEREE
AIF1RE THEET BRI E &
RARBEEEGAEAENTREER
HEHE UZBEHERER EEZ
THAHNERERRHET12ME A
NERNEERREAREEREE
BiE-

HK$'000
BT T
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZE-NF+ZA=+T—HEEN
as at 31st December, 2018 & R 236
Less: Practical expedient — lease with lease il : R % — REBAERHNER A H
term ending within 12 months from 1218 A A 58 4
the date of initial application (236)

Lease liability as at 1st January, 2019

—hF-A—-—BWHEEaRE —

The application of HKFRS 16 has no significant impact to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ontineq
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For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE=Z—-—hALF+-_A=+—HBLEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

HKFRSs

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material*

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform?*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1st
January, 2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was
issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January, 2020.

B Bl
REEN(TEBHBR
e 3: (| DIPeS

MARERZHTREBTEE
At iR & A
EEMBEHEER

% el R EE5] & E Y
HEHR

ARMBEREED RRAEY

£17%

EERBRELR  EBHNTER
E3IR 2B

ERUHREREN BREEFHABHER
FIRKEBEH AE/AELECH
EREHR 2 1BE] REEREERAN
ERBHENEIRR EXANER

BB e ENESH

ZIBE

BERBREEA FIEREEHREF
Fo5 - HEEHE

BIE3957 R BB B

BREERETR

EH)

! BAR-B-—F-A-HRZRABRNOFESR

M e

? BRARKEBESRAR - _TF - —BR2EM
mrBEEEERAMRRZRZEBAHRERE
W BE -

: AN AEE B # s 2 12 R s ey R AR -

¢ BAR-_ZE-_FF-A - HRZRABOFESR
M e

B BRI REERT BB REE
SN BETHBRERSERD R
ZE-)\FHM RRENER B
[ BB R 52 5 E R P I B AEAR A 2

RZBETIBR T _TF—-—A—H%

LR EEHREER -

TREBRERAR Z—T-AFE® 65



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ontinweq

FEMBREME @

For the year ended 31st December, 2019 # &= =% —
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continved)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a
Business

The amendments:

o add an optional concentration test that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The election on
whether to apply the optional concentration test is
available on transaction-by-transaction basis;

o clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set
of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs;
and

o narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by
focusing on goods and services provided to customers
and by removing the reference to an ability to reduce
costs.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively to all
business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1st January, 2020.

The optional concentration test and the amended definition of

a business are not expected to have a significant impact to the
Group.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2019 HEZE=ZZ—hAF+=-ZA=+—HLEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("H KFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continved)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition
of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations in
making materiality judgments. In particular, the amendments:

o include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating
the information;

o replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”; and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than
simply referring to “users” which was considered too
broad when deciding what information to disclose in the
financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1st January, 2020. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact on the
financial positions and performance of the Group but may
affect the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEFTBE

68

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for financial instrument that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

RAVBHRRDBREEEGAMLE
Mz EEARBRSERER - 1L
S R AV BBMREEMRI T ZES
ERRAT LR REFB QA K
PIMEZERBEERM -

BT R BRI B ARA
TEFASBRIAZERKS  &E
B1 75 3R % TR 3R M R 2 I & AR
B H -

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the FEERA—RIBIEZZE M ERERE
consideration given in exchange for goods and services. It EBEZAFETHE -

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
leasing that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16
(since 1st January, 2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of
HKFRS 16), and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
to the fair

measurements are observable and the significance of the

the degree to which the inputs value
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are

described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
o has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Interest in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associate used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Change in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Interest in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Interest in a joint operation

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
which exists only when

of control of an arrangement,

decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and

expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets,

liabilities, revenues and expenses.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a

bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criterias is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the
other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before that
good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.
Exploration and evaluation assets include the cost of
exploration rights and the expenditure incurred in the search
for natural resources as well as the determination of the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting those

resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified as
either intangible assets or property, plant and equipment.
These assets are assessed for impairment before
reclassification, and any impairment loss is recognised in profit

or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEEBEw
(continued)
Leases (continued) *ﬂ%x-‘?
The Group as a lessee (upon application of KEEBRBEA (RIFH 225
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in ZEBRMIEKETET BB R
note 2) (continued) 5@5[/%16%)("5)
Right-of-use assets ZHEEE
The cost of right-of-use asset includes: TRAEEENKANBE :

76

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease . HERBWYTHESE
liability;
. any lease payments made at or before the commencement . M F 8 B Hi sk 2 BT VE B BT 8

date, less any lease incentives received,

BN OREM S WEE B

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and . SEEENEMTBEERA
P53
. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in . SERFREBREBEMAEEE &

dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liability as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1st January,
2019)

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case,
the exchange rates at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the

cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

3.

TRRERER QA

FEFHTBR

BEERE

HRKE ZRIBECEREEM
EREEZBERLS  HBEELA
EERERONEAEEBTARE
BHNERIHE  HEERANFTA
REEIZRA BEERECEHRER
RETEREERTAEUHEE -

PrA A EERANGR H E L B

RSB

BABEARE
) AR PR A8 A 8 2 1 30 R B R R R
BMARZAHURKERRMAX -

EHESERN
MHEERNNERREMHE BREE
BEMEXNHREN KGR EER -
FRENBEERMNERRFAX KRIF
A EAWBREEANRERK A
BHFFABERARA -

BENMEBENTIANSBERIERE
AEMNMIERTE FREBR)
FER

BiIE

PIT 15 75 577 S 45 B HA B A0 750 0 B SR SE 7
B -

—ZE-hAEFHR 79



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ontinweq
REMHRRMTE @

For the year ended 31st December, 2019 EHZEZ_=Z

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit before tax.
Taxable profit differs from ‘(loss) profit before tax’ as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the

right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the
requirements of HKAS

lease liabilities, the Group applies

12 Income Taxes to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net
basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the
lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities

results in net deductible temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
in other

current and deferred tax are also recognised

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use
for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of uranium are determined on the weighted
average cost method and cost of other inventories are
determined on the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter initial

period, to the net carrying amount on

recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value though other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair

value through profit or loss.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
If the
credit risk on the credit impaired financial instrument

financial asset from the next reporting period.

improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no

longer credit-impaired.
Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

at FVTOCI is
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and

Investments in equity instruments
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FVTOCI

assessment.

reserve; and are not subject to impairment

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Dividends are included in the “other

income” line item in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, restricted cash and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continved)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external credit rating;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; or

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in

the regulatory, economic, or technological

environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continved)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following

events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event; or

(¢) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continved)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over five years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are

recognised in profit or loss.
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

the ECL
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in

Generally, is the difference between all
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continved)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continved)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial

asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in equity instrument which the Group has
elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI upon
application of HKFRS 9 is derecognised or such investment
becomes interests in associate, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified
to profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated losses.

CNNC International Limited 2019 Annual Report

N == e I i

FEEHTBR

ﬁﬁﬂlﬁ-é

LB E

EEEEZ 6 E )

(v) Tﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁri&ﬁﬁ
Fl/u(/ﬂ/
FMEWARBERMEENIREE
REAE EeREERAEAR
BB RILBERT -
BWARESREENEBRKAN

AEBERAEeRIANKRE

BERERPHERELRERZNE

BEEKRESEREZRRI  HE

AERNBEREERERER -

RIFER T @ EE
AEBENEDEEREREZALD
BAERSTERILERCHEE -

BIFERLRHEEANBER AT E
Brr BEZIERMESRED W AEWRKE
MEZEZHGEBRTPER-

EAEEREREEM GRS ERE
IR T HRERUAFEFEAH
SEFAHEMERENER AR
ERIERAEREERKHZ QA
%’%ﬁéiﬁﬁﬁ$§#W§ﬂﬁ

AT TEENSEEES MEERE
ZRBEEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ontineq

For the year ended 31st December, 2019 EHZEZ_=%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities including trade, bills and other payables,
bank borrowings and amounts due to an intermediate holding
company, ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of

the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, corporates assets are allocated to individual cash
generating units when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established.
The Group assesses whether there is indication that corporate
assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating

units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

CNNC International Limited 2019 Annual Report

3.

FEEHTBR
ARREREEZBERIE

VE BERRGREHES
Z
AEERRERRBEANE  BWE
RREGEREAREEZREME UE
EREBDRBRAXSAELARE
BiE - HHREARBERSR A&
SR AEZARESE R E
BE(NA) Z2E -

ME - BERERBREABEEZA
W [ & B8R 8 Bl T o A S BE 1 At ME
PIEEZAREEE  AKEE [
HEEMBREELEM 2 AJRE S
B

N EREERAABNGEETNZ
DEEESEEZEHNREEL BN -
BRHIERAIEEANBNAEEY DR
EEZRNREELEMN - AEEF
EREAETRRARAEEAREELE
ME - MRFEZER AIRAAE
EMBNREELETXREELE
THEAHEERN KL SR WHBHER
CEABRANBELEANKRER
BETHEER-

AU Bl & B8 A T E R H & A K AE
REEZ®RSE FEERAEER"
BEFRKRERETERH AR X
FTREHRE ZHBAXRBEAT
HHE SR EE A RMGERE
RERERAGABZEEXRTES
Bz BERR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ontineq

REMBRERME @

For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE=Z—-—hALF+-_A=+—HBLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or the group of
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets
is reviewed and assessed for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets whenever one of the following
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable (the list is not exhaustive):

o the period for which the Group has the right to explore
in the specific area has expired during the period or will
expire in the near future, and is not expected to be
renewed;

o substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area is
neither budgeted nor planned;

o exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the
specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of mineral resources and
the Group has decided to discontinue such activities in
the specific area; or

. sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to proceed, the
carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation asset
is unlikely to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever

the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE=Z—-—hALF+-_A=+—HBLEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.
Principal versus agent consideration (principal)

The Group engages in trading of uranium, dispersed metals
and electronics and other products. The Group concluded that
the Group acts as the principal for such transactions as it
controls the specified good before it is transferred to the
customer after taking into consideration indicators such as the
Group is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to
provide the goods. The Group has inventory risk and price
risk.

When the Group satisfies the performance obligation, the
Group recognises trading revenue in the gross amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled as
specified in the contract.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
U N C E RTAI NTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Principal versus agent consideration (agent)

The Group is considered as an agent in provision of supply
chain services, the performance obligation is to arrange for the
provision of dispersed metals and electronic and other
products as the Group did not obtain the control over the
goods before passing on to customers taking into
consideration indicators such as the Group is not primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide electronic and
other products and not exposed to inventory risk.

When the Group satisfies the performance obligation, the
Group recognises a commission revenue in the amount it
expects to be entitled as specified in the contracts.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment on exploration and
evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment
when facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may exceed the recoverable amount. As detailed in
note 13, the Group owns a number of exploration licenses
included in exploration and evaluation assets in Mongolia for
uranium mining which are subjected to Mongolia’s Law on
Nuclear Energy and Mongolia’s Law on Implementing
Procedures of the Law on Nuclear Energy being effective on
15th August, 2009 (collectively referred to as the “New
Laws”).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

U N C E RTAI NTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Impairment assessment on exploration and
evaluation assets (continued)

The Group commenced negotiating with the relevant
Mongolian authorities in respect of the implementation of the
New Laws from 2010 and consensus has been reached
between the Group and the relevant Mongolian authorities
that a joint venture would be established for holding the
Group's mining licenses, which are currently under application,
with the Mongolia Government holding 51% of the equity
interest of the joint venture. During the year ended 31st
December, 2019, the Group has initiated the Lawsuit (as
defined in note 13) claiming to confirm non-performance of
relevant Mongolian authorities in relation to application of the
mining licenses in accordance with the Mongolian laws and
reinstate the validity of the exploration licenses. However, the
result of the Lawsuit and the timing of obtaining the mining
licenses are highly uncertain.

In determining the recoverable amount of exploration and
evaluation assets, the management has assessed the
impairment based on higher of value in use or fair value less
costs of disposal. To measure the fair value, it requires
significant degree of judgment by management in selecting
the valuation techniques and applying key assumptions and
inputs to the impairment assessment model, including market
price of natural uranium and market observable transactions of
similar transactions related to the acquisition of companies
which hold mining project at preliminary stage, taking into
account the notice from the Mongolian authority, latest status
of the Lawsuit, regulatory requirements in Mongolia and the
arrangement for the Group’s mining licenses. Details of the
assessment have been set out in note 13. Where there is
change in facts and circumstances which results in revision of
future cash flows estimation, reversal of impairment may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such change takes place.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA R 9 EE

Revenue of the Group represents amounts received or AEEBWRAELHEHER 8 &
receivable arising from the sale of uranium, dispersed metals FREMERZEWKERE E K
and electronics and other products. Sale of goods are A-HEBEmREDRNGEERE
recognised when control of the goods has transferred to the BTG RERI R PERER -
customer, being at the point the goods are delivered to the

customer.

Commission income is recognised when provision of supply e AR RHHEERGRRER -

chain services are provided.

Revenue from contracts with customers BEEEHEANAS
Exploration
Trading and selling
of mineral of mineral Supply
Segments 5 &B property properties chain 2019 Total
TEHRE BERSE —E—-NhE
/ES WEME {4t & 88 st

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETRT #B®TR BT #BETRT

Trading of =
— uranium — i 601,321 — — 601,321
— electronics and other — BF RHAM
products Em — — 1,418,306 1,418,306
— dispersed metals — SBE® — — 1,150,209 1,150,209
601,321 — 2,568,515 3,169,836
Exploration
Trading  and selling
of mineral of mineral Supply
property properties chain 2018 Total
KrE HWRKES —E-N\F
REYE REYE 1 e 3 HBEt
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT  OBEFRT  BEFRT BETFR
Trading of ==
— uranium — 252,886 — — 252,886
— electronics and other —BFK
products H M E @ — — 1,731,507 1,731,507
Provision of EHHEERS
supply chain services — — 7,659 7,659

252,886 — 1,739,166 1,992,052
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
All trading of products and provision of services are for period
of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

Information reported to the Group’s executive directors, being
the chief operating decision maker (CODM), for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods delivered or services provided. The
Group currently organises its operations into three operating
divisions, which also represent the operating segments of the
Group for financial reporting purposes, namely trading of
mineral property, exploration and selling of mineral properties
and supply chain. They represent three major lines of business
engaged by the Group. The Group’s operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

e Trading of mineral property — trading of uranium
e Exploration and selling of — exploration and selling
mineral properties of uranium
e Supply chain — selling of dispersed
metals and

electronics products,
including but not
limited to trading of
liquid crystal
displays, flash drives,
memory cards, etc.
and provision of
supply chain services
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(continued)

The following is an analysis for the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment:

For the year ended 31st December, 2019

WARDEBEE

AEBZRARFERERNEED
MEI D 2T

BE_FT—NF+=-HA=4+—
B I EE

Exploration
Trading and selling
of mineral of mineral Supply
property properties chain  Consolidated
BRRHE
CEREME REME 3030 &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ER®TR EBTR EBTR EBTR
Segment revenue L ON 601,321 — 2,568,515 3,169,836
Segment profit (loss) 7 8 F (B E) 2,788 (215,715) 17,534 (195,393)
Bank Interest income RITH B WA 881
Unallocated corporate costs ApEEEKAE (7,775)
Share of result of an associate i =N (1,896)
Unallocated finance costs Ao BCE BRA (13,223)
Loss before tax bR T A 1B (217,406)
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 BE-_F—NEFEF+=-A=+—
HIEEE
Exploration
Trading and selling
of mineral of mineral Supply
property properties chain Consolidated
HRRHEE
REBEDNE BEME i e g fra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Segment revenue =L N 252,886 — 1,739,166 1,992,052
Segment profit (loss) 5 i M (B 18) 1,836 (6,086) 10,281 6,031
Bank Interest income RITH B WA 2,041
Unallocated corporate costs RAOBEERR (3,780)
Profit before tax Bk 85 Bl i A 4,292
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For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE=Z—-—hALF+-_A=+—HBLEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the

same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.

Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned by (loss

from) each segment without allocation of bank interest

income, unallocated corporate costs, share of result of an

associate, exchange (gain) loss and unallocated finance costs.

This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segment:

WARDEBEE

AN 3B - MR B AR B & ET K
RAAR - 2 8B K (B18) 8% 2 B0 AR
ELaN(ER) TRERITHENK
A HRRITBERARZ DI - B8 E
NEEE EL (s BRERDE
BAAEARA e ThBL 1T BR o B Ko =¥
EoMRREMAEELERRAZR
ZEtEEH -

PHEERAIR
AEEEERABRERREE S B
BAZHmT

2019 2018
—B—h% —E—N\fF
HK$000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE
— Trading of mineral property — RETEEYE 324,479 204,636
— Exploration and selling of mineral — WERNEE
properties BEME 15,368 228,908
— Supply chain — s 378,979 165,822
718,826 599,366
Interests in associates Bt & N A kA 422,069 —
Unallocated corporate assets RKOMARIEE 6,249 11,401
Consolidated assets CEEE 1,147,144 610,767
LIABILITIES B&E
Segment liabilities SHEE
— Trading of mineral property — REREME 337,588 3,373
— Exploration and selling of mineral — WRREE
properties BEME 16,753 16,425
— Supply chain — e 167,202 22,629
521,543 42,427
Unallocated corporate liabilities PN /NETR=Er= 290,679 1,646
Consolidated liabilities LeEafE 812,222 44,073
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA R 5 EBE

(continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continved) THEEREBERE®

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MERSBEERRESE S BHEER

allocating resources between segments: s :

. Segment assets include property, plant and equipment, . SMEEBRFEBERS BEE
exploration and evaluation assets, inventories, trade and iz BB k& MR
other receivables and prepayments, restricted cash and NMFEEE T7E EBRESK
bank balances and cash which are directly attributable to TR N B At e W R TR I FE AN RIE
the relevant reportable segment. PR B 17 FLA K BR1T 4k R IR

. Segment liabilities include trade, bills and other payables . NHBEREREBERY BEE
and accruals, contract liabilities and amounts due to an BIEZRENE S  ZENREME
intermediate holding company, ultimate holding company NHREUAREGFRR &8 8
and fellow subsidiaries and bank borrowings which are B -EBE—EAFNMERQE - &
directly attributable to the relevant reportable segment. Sl /NI RSN e

FIE RBITER -
Other segment information Hth 53 2B & ¥
2019
—%-1f
Exploration
Trading and selling
of mineral of mineral Supply
property properties chain Unallocated Total
BRRHE
LERENE BENE e RAE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AR AR

AR AR EETR

Amounts included in the measure of FEATHEER
segment results or segment assets: A HEER A

LEE:
Addition to non-current assets REFETPEE -
Interest in associates Benm#s -
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1%  BERREZ
equipment ik -

Depreciation of right-of-use asset ~ FREEERE -
Impairment loss of exploration and ~ B&RFEEERE

evaluation assets BX -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE « FE K&

equipment EEB -
Share of result of an associate [ - UNGE S -

46

n

210,367

1,575

m 13 170
— 422,069 422,069
76 81 868
- m m
- - 210,367
- — 1,575
— 1,896 1,896
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA RSEEE

(continued)
Other segment information (continued) Hib 7B EFE
2018
TN\
Exploration
Trading and selling
of mineral of mineral Supply
property properties chain Unallocated Total
BRREE
BERENE BEN% s AR E @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ERETT BB BETTL BETTL BETTL

Amounts included in the measure of FEAHEER
segment results or segment assets: A HEER A

28
Addition to non-current assets REFRYEE - 142 27 60 429
Depreciation of property, nE BERREZ
plant and equipment & — 977 35 69 1,081
Geographical information EER
The Group’s revenue by geographical market (irrespective of BREPKRIMEE D 2 AEERHE
the origin of the goods) based on the incorporation location of mE (T E AR ) 2 W A G it an
the customers are detailed below: N
Revenue
(PN
2019 2018
—E—-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$ 000
EETT BT T
PRC a3 2,606,781 1,808,179
Cayman Islands eSS 188,468 —
England ES 121,734 —
The United States S5 106,325 —
Germany = 94,102 —
Switzerland It 52,426 75,396
Canada mER — 108,477
3,169,836 1,992,052
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA RSEEE «

(continued)
Geographical information (continued) WmESHE @
The Group’s operation is principally located in the Mongolia AEFXZEAEEHERABEEE - K&
and PRC. Information about the Group’s non-current assets by BiZHERBDEE L HEE D CEE
geographical location of the assets is detailed below: BRFFNT
Non-current assets
ERBEE
2019 2018
—E—-NhE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Mongolia e 12,337 225,893
PRC F 422,893 2,867
435,230 228,760
Information about major customers FREEEFR&EH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding vyears BRAEBRRWAI0%RERTFRIE
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are HEEOHWRARAT
as follows:
2019 2018
—E—-NE —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Customer A EPA 872,732' N/A 3@ FR2
Customer B =FB 539,283" N/AT 3 32
Customer C BPC 478,581 N/AT i FR?
Customer D ®FD N/AT i 2 1,711,182
1 Revenue from supply chain. 1 A -
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the 2 HEMNKRALEEBERERBIKAZ10% ©
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and

the chief executive were as follows:

6. EERESENE

ENSENTEES RITHEE 2 B
oy /(N

Directors’ Salaries and Discretionary
fee allowances bonus Total
EEHg HeRER BiRtEd @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR
For the year ended BE_B-1%
31st December, 2019 +ZRA=+-HILEE
Executive directors (note i): PITES (M) -
Mr. Cheng Lei BRELE
(appointed on 1st June, 2019 and (RZ2-1%
resigned on 4th May, 2020) AA—BLEAER
R-E-F
A AMBEE) - 250 242 492
Mr. Bai Donghai HEEBXE
(resigned on 1st June, 2019) (R=Z-n%&
NA-BEIE) - 225 — 225
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Mr. Yang Chaodong GRRAE
(resigned on 4th May, 2020) (R=Z-%%
A AMAEE) - - - -
Mr. Li Zhihuang FEEEE
(resigned on 4th May, 2020) (R=2-%%
f AWM A — — - -
Independent non-executive directors BAERTES (M) -
(note ii):
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry REMLE
(resigned on 31st December, 2019) (RZE-N%&
TZA=t+-HEE) 250 - — 250
Mr. Cui Liguo EFELE 250 — — 250
Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 250 — — 250
750 475 242 1,467
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6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 6. EERESENE
E M 0 LU M E NTS (continued)
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and ERHREN TR ESE RITHRAE 2
the chief executive were as follows: cap N
Directors’ Salaries and Discretionary
fee allowances bonus Total
EE 2k o RE Wit Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
For the year ended BE_E-/\E
31st December, 2018 +ZH=+-HLEE
Executive director (note i): frES (M)
Mr. Bai Donghai AREEE — 531 320 851
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Yang Chaodong BRARLE — — — -
Mr. Li Zhihuang FEEAHE
(appointed on (RZZ-N\F
15th January, 2018) —ATRALMA) — — — —
Independent non-executive directors B FEHTEE (M i)
(note ii):
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry REBLE 250 — — 250
Mr. Cui Liguo EEEE 250 — — 250
Mr. Zhang Lei RERE 250 — — 250
750 531 320 1,601
At 31st December, 2019, Mr. Cheng Lei (2018: Mr. Bai RZZE—-—NFE+A=+—H E%
Donghai) was the Chief Executive of the Company and his EE(ZE—NF - BHRBEBEE)NE
emoluments disclosed above include those for services RANBITHARE W EXIBEERZ
rendered by him as the Chief Executive. MEBEEEEATREHTIEHERG
ZH® e
Notes: G
(i) The executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services in connection (i) NEETHITESMS D EBRBRERARE R
with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. AT -
(i) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their (ii) U EBIFRTEFHEEZEARRRAZES
services as directors of the Company. RS -
(iii) The directors of the Company are entitled to discretionary bonus payments which are (iii) ARBETHTESHEEGEL  ZREATIE
determined based on the performance. BENRTEENERRET -
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 6.

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Of the five employees with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one individual (2018: one individual) was director of
the Company whose emolument is included in the disclosure
set out above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2018:
four) employees were as follows:

EEREEME

AEEBshEGEaFHMALTH  —F
(ZE—N\F: —B)ATREARARAE
EREEZMEH A X 28
B-#THE(ZT—NF HE)A
TzMewnT

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT 7T T
Salaries and other benefits M & H b 12 F 4,042 3,075
Retirement benefit schemes contributions B RAR A FT 814 50 58 43
4,100 3,118
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEAE BB AH
Emoluments of the employees were within ~ EBEME& N T THI4E7 :
the following bands:
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =z #1,000,0007T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 7 #1,000,0017T
78 #1,500,0007T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the directors or the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived any emoluments during the year.

FR AEEITERAEFANESXRA
ERFMALXHEAMES  ERF
EMAREESLMARNEERK 2 RS
KBEREE MEEFTNFAREL
fa] B &
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7.

FINANCE COSTS 7. HBRE
2019 2018
—E—-NE —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
Interest on bank borrowings AT A B 14,876 —
Interest on lease liability HEBERNE 8 —
Amortisation of loan front-end fee B XA ER B A 8 2,481 —
17,365 —
(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. Ba¥inml(B548) & F
2019 2018
—E—-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
(Loss) profit before tax has been arrived at B Bl (F18) B &N
after charging: BRTFIE :
Directors’ emoluments (see note 6) ZEE=M2 (Hike6) 1,467 1,601
Other staff costs Hi 8 TR A 9,508 6,518
Retirement benefit schemes contributions SRy o R
(see note 32) (fF7E32) 771 62
Total staff costs BT A EE 11,746 8,181
Depreciation of property, plant and - HWERE&EZ
equipment e 868 1,081
Depreciation of right-of-use asset TRAEEEZTE 111 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEK
equipment RELEE 1,575 —
Auditors’ remuneration 2 SR BN & 2,156 1,616
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense MR AR X 27 &K A 3,137,195 1,969,367
Operating lease charges on land and buildings T MIBF 2 & &M E
ZH — 1,010
and after crediting: AR BT AR -
Bank interest income HRAT A B WA (881) (2,041)
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TAXATION

On 21st March, 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the
“Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28th March, 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong profits tax of the qualifying group
entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the
estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits above HK$2 million.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2018 as the assessable profit was wholly absorbed
by tax losses brought forward.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of a PRC subsidiary is 25%. In 2019, a PRC subsidiary of
the Company was qualified as enterprise in encouraged
industries in Shenzhen and was subject to an Enterprise
Income Tax (“EIT”) rate of 15%. In 2018, it was qualified as
“Small Low-profit Enterprise” in Shenzhen and subject to an
EIT rate of 10%.

L]

2018F3A21B & BLFZE BB T
QOV7FEB B BT (B75) EHIE )
(DEZFRD -3l AT M ARFE B &
€ o % AR N2018F3A28B R EK A
ERCURBALEFERLETE - BIE
MBFERBEEHE aEKREERE
BEH) B 2008 /8 oL 7 B 16 128.25% K Bl
TERFL - 2008 7% 7T LA £ &Y R H ¥ 1%
16.5% BB X o TS M AR SIF S
MESENEEEEOIEGERR
16.5% ) £t — B B -

it AERMNAREENTEANE
B 5 FE AR B v I 9 52008 78 Tt
H /8.25% - 8 i82002 % JT 1Y fh 51
FERFFE A16.5% o

B Z£2018F12A31H L FENA 481
HHRERPRTIREEFGREE
BERBEF 2B aEEHAEEIER
o

BEFRECEMGSHE(DEREH
ENDREEMSREERGH - R
BB A B AR K B25% © FA2019%4F -
RNREH P B E R R &R BRI
EEEEECE  WAEABMNIS%RH D
EEH - 2018F W ARINTREAI/N
Ml PEMSHHEERIO% °

2019 2018
—E—-NE —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
The charge (credit) comprises: (FRUY) & B
Current tax NEATR IR
Hong Kong Profits Tax EAENER 808 —
PRC EIT REBEMREHR 1,085 39
Under (over) provision in prior years BABHREEETR
PRC EIT (EBFRRB )
PEBEMREHR 24 (19,360)
1,917 (19,321)
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9. TAXATION (continued) 9.
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

BilE

AFEEMFEWATAIZRBRAE FBERA
HEmigzalWmRxEum TNHA(BE) &
) B

2019 2018
—E—-NE ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
(Loss) profit before tax AT (B 18) & 7 (217,406) 4,292
Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable in ZE B BEA M R E
respective jurisdictions Z 1A (35,261) 742
Tax effect of share of result of an associate JE(hEtE NFIEE 2T
e e 313 —
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BAERBWA 2 B
purpose g (164) (266)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax 7~ A #0174 58 37 2 T3 7%
purpose B 38,304 1,067
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIAEE 2B
TE — 542
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses AR FERERTIE
previously not recognised BRI GEE (421) (1,987)
Effect of tax concession granted to a PRC BTHBEWB RN
subsidiary BEREZHBEE (713) (59)
Under (over) provision in prior years BTHBEREETE
(EBRR ) 24 (19,360)
Income tax at concessionary rate EEMEMREH (165) —
Taxation for the year AFEHIE 1,917 (19,321)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$44,632,000 (2018: HK$60,488,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised for the year due to the unpredictability of future
profits streams. The tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE=Z—-—hALF+-_A=+—HBLEFE

10. DIVIDENDS

11.

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed during the current
and prior years. The directors have determined that no
dividend will be paid in respect of the year ended 31st
December, 2019.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

10. I 2

11.

RAFENBEFEABERN &
ERABREKBEE - EFERETERE
E-F-NFT+_A=+t—HLFE
A BB, o

Bz (B518) & T
ARFEEARETRER (BR) A
R TR 5 T 5 BUR 4 -

2019 2018
—E-NhE ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$ 000
EETR BT T

(Loss) profit for the year attributable RAFRHEE ANEGHFA
to owners of the Company (E18) & 7 (219,323) 23,613
2019 2018
—E—-NhE ZE-)N\F

Number of ordinary shares for the purposes & E S (HE)EF Z
of (loss) earnings per share BN A 489,168,308 489,168,308

No diluted loss per share for the year ended 31st December,
2019 and 2018 was presented as there were no potential
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

HEz_2—N\Frk-_F—NLF+=A
T HLEFE EFRALFEBEN
BBETEER  REENBEESR
548 -
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. ¥ BERRE

Plant and
machinery Furniture
Leasehold Mining and other and Motor
improvements structure  equipment fixtures vehicles Total
RER#KSE
HEYERE BRELHE DRAMRE HERKE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
COST A
At 1st January, 2018 RZE-N\E—A—H 138 4,885 45,313 3,091 1,435 54,862
Exchange difference EREE — 10 46 (4 3 55
Additions NE - — 96 333 - 429
Disposals & — — — (203) — (203)
At 31st December, 2018 R=F—/\F
+-A=1+-H 138 4,895 45,455 3,217 1,438 55,143
Exchange difference EREE — (24) (166) (14) (7) 211)
Additions nE — — 18 152 — 170
Disposals e — (390) (10,759) (2,327) — (13,476)
At 31st December, 2019 RZ-ZT— ¥
+-A=1+-H 138 4,481 34,548 1,028 1,431 41,626
DEPRECIATION g
At 1st January, 2018 RZZ-N\E—-H—H 57 1,546 35,237 2,226 81 39,147
Exchange difference EXES — 3 65 2 — 70
Provided for the year EEEE 49 79 874 70 9 1,081
Eliminated on disposals HERYH — — — (203) — (203)
At 31st December, 2018 RZE—\E
+-A=1+-H 106 1,628 36,176 2,095 90 40,095
Exchange difference EREE — ) (160) (6) — (174)
Provided for the year EREE 32 51 620 138 2 868
Eliminated on disposals HERYH - (347) (9,898) (1,523) — (11,768)
At 31st December, 2019 RZZT—1F
+-A=+-H 138 1,324 26,738 704 17 29,021
CARRYING VALUES RufE
At 31st December, 2019 R=-ZT—fLF
+-A=1+-H — 3,157 7,810 324 1,314 12,605
At 31st December, 2018 RZE—-N\F
+-A=+-H 32 3,267 9,279 1,122 1,348 15,048

112 CNNC International Limited 2019 Annual Report



12.

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ontineq

REMBRERME @

For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE=Z—-—hALF+-_A=+—HBLEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements  Over the term of the leases or 5
years, whichever is the shorter
20 to 40 years

6%—-20%

Mining structure

Plant and machinery and
other equipment

18%-33%

18%-25%

Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION
ASSETS

12. V% - BERRXRE»

iy E - BEREEEEB AR
aF AT R H M R AT M AL AR A R RR (B
B AEHERATFRFETE

HMEMERE HEFHLSHF

(ABREB%E)
e 41 20E404F
TR 5 N # 2 6%-20%
LA Ko H A 58 4
RMWREE 18%-33%
qE 18%-25%

13. IR R AL & E

HK$'000

T T
COST BN
At 1st January, 2018 RZZE—-—N\F—H—H 210,709
Exchange difference M 5 Z & 442
At 31st December, 2018 RZE—N\F+_A=+—H 211,151
Exchange difference E N =% (784)
Impairment loss VERER=ES (210,367)

At 31st December, 2019

RZF-AFE+-_A=+—8H —

The Group’s exploration and evaluation assets were mainly
arising from the acquisition of Western Prospector Group Ltd.
during the year ended 31st December, 2009 (“Mongolian
Mining Project”).

On 15th August, 2009, the New Laws came into force. Under
the New Laws, the Mongolia Government has the right to take
ownership without payment of either (i) not less than 51% of
the equity interest in the Group’s Mongolian subsidiaries if the
Mongolia Government’s funding was used to determine the
resource during exploration, or (ii) not less than 34% of the
equity interest in the Mongolian subsidiaries if the Mongolia
Government'’s funding was not used to determine the resource
during exploration.

TRRERER QA

AEBZHEMFHEETIEHRE
E-FTAFt A=t BLFE
I fEWestern Prospector Group Ltd.in
EE(EHWMEBEERA]) -

RZZFZTAFNATHBE  FEHCE
ER - RBEFED  REBRTAER
BOTLPRRAEER G M E QAR
BZ51% (MR YRBEFHAREK
FE2ERER) KT PRI E M
B AEI A Z234% (X B R B2 b
EPRZERFESER/ER) <A
R MBAMNK -
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13. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION 13. B iR RFFEEE o

AS S ETS (continued)

The directors of the Company commenced negotiating with
the
implementation of various provisions under the New Laws

relevant Mongolian authorities in respect of the
during the year ended 31st December, 2010. Based on
management’s discussions with the relevant Mongolian
authorities and the advice from its Mongolian legal adviser, the
Group will have the right to apply for mining licenses to mine
or extract the resources identified in the relevant areas covered

by the exploration licenses.

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, consensus has
been reached between the Group and the relevant Mongolian
authorities that a joint venture will be established for holding
the mining licenses, which are currently under application,
with the Mongolia Government holding 51% of the equity
interest in the joint venture. Upon the completion of
establishment of the joint venture, the Group’s mining licenses
together with the carrying amount of the Group’s exploration
and evaluation assets would be transferred to the joint venture
by way of a shareholder loan. In addition, the Company has
drafted the shareholders’ agreement, joint venture agreement
and memorandum and association of the joint venture and has
commenced negotiation on the detailed terms of these
documents with the relevant Mongolian authorities and a pre-
mining cooperation agreement was signed on 26th June,

2012 to kick off the pre-mining activities.
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13. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION

ASSETS (continued)

A notice was previously received in January 2014 from the
relevant Mongolian authorities which mentioned that the joint
in 2014.
However, the establishment and the grant of mining licenses

venture would be expected to be established

had been postponed due to changes in government officials of
relevant Mongolian authorities in 2014, October 2017, and
June 2019. Further negotiations on the terms of the draft joint
venture agreement have been carried out with the new
government officials of relevant Mongolian authorities. In
2018, the Group received assistance from the Embassy of the
People’s Republic of China in Mongolia, to speed up the

application progress. Several communications were made
between the Embassy and the Mongolian government officials
regarding the application of the mining licence. In December
2019,

Mongolian authority, which suggested the Group to apply for

the Group received a notice from the relevant
a court order in relation to the matters relating to resumption
of the application for the mining licenses for the reason that
the relevant exploration licenses have expired.

Based on the advice from the Group’s Mongolian legal
advisers, on 9th January, 2020, Emeelt Mines LLC, an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which is the holder
of the exploration licenses (as the applicant) has filed in the
Capital City Administrative Court of First-Instance of Mongolia
(the

the Mineral Resources and Petroleum Authority of Mongolia (as

“Court”) an administrative lawsuit (the “Lawsuit”) with
the respondent) claiming, among other things, to confirm the
non-performance of the respondent in relation to the granting
of the mining licenses in accordance with the Mongolian laws
and reinstate the validity of the exploration licenses. The Court
established a case on 27th January, 2020. Due to possible
outbreak of novel coronavirus pandemic (the “Pandemic”) in

Mongolia, as a precaution, the Court has suspended the
proceedings in February 2020 and March 2020. In accordance
with hearing of the Court on 30th April, 2020, the Court
refused discussion of the Group’s application. Without
the Court considered that the

application had been time-barred. Written judgement of the

providing detailed reasons,

Court (with detailed reasons) are expected to be delivered
after the date of issuance of these consolidated financial
statements.

13.
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13. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION 13. B iR RFFEEE o

ASSETS (continued)

At 31st December, 2019 and 2018, the directors performed an
impairment assessment and re-assessed the recoverable
amount of assets based on fair value less costs of disposal,
which is derived by using the market approach. The Group has
engaged GCA Professional Services Group, an independent
qualified professional valuer, to perform the valuation for
assessment.

In determining the fair value, the valuer has adopted the
comparable transaction method to calculate the value of the
assets. There was no change to the valuation technique during
the year. The fair value of the asset is a level 3 fair value
measurement. One of the key inputs to the method is the
measured resources from the uranium mines as market
observable transactions related to the acquisition of companies
which held mining project at preliminary stage, adjusted by the
measured and indicated price multiple, which is determined as
the market comparable projects. The valuer has also applied an
adjusting factor with reference to the market price of natural
uranium. In addition to the valuation assessment, the directors
also applied another adjustment factor (adjustment factor for
the status of Lawsuit), taken into consideration the notice from
the relevant Mongolian authority, the uncertain outcome of
the Lawsuit, regulatory requirements in Mongolia and the
arrangement procedures for the Group’s mining licenses. The
directors are of the view that possibly unfavourable outcome
of the Lawsuit causes the recoverable amount of assets is
lower than the carrying value of the assets and full
impairment loss on the exploration and evaluation assets
amounting to HK$210,367,000 (2018:Nil) was recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31st December,
2019.
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14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 14. RBEATIZH#LR

2019 2018

—E-hE —ZE—N\HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT 7T T

Cost of unlisted investments FEEMEE 2R 894,457 463,865

Share of post-acquisition losses and FE AL U B 12 B 18 R oA

other comprehensive income 2m WA (465,761) (463,865)

Exchange difference EH E R (6,627) —

Interest in associates REE R a2 = 422,069 —
As at 31st December, 2019 and 31st December 2018, the R_E—NF+_A=+—HEK_-Z
unlisted investments include: —N\NF+_A=+—H8 KETHE

R

37.2% equity interest in Société des Mines d'Azelik S.A.
("Somina”)

During the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Group
acquired 37.2% equity interest in Société des Mines
d'Azelik S.A. (“Somina”) through the acquisition of a
subsidiary known as Ideal Mining Limited (”Ideal
Mining”). Somina is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements. At
31st December, 2019 and 2018, the Group’s equity
interest in Somina is pledged to a bank for certain
banking facilities granted to Somina.

Due to the continued operating losses suffered over the
years, unfavourable market conditions for the sale of
uranium and insufficient cash flows for repayment of
outstanding bank borrowings, Somina has run into
serious going concern problems. The production of
Somina has been suspended since the first half of 2015
and it is highly uncertain whether Somina will resume
operation in the foreseeable future.

The directors of the Company considered the
summarised financial information of Somina is not
presented as the financial position of Somina has no
material improvement noted during the year that can
support the reversal of the impairment loss made in
previous years.

i Société des Mines d'Azelik
S.A. ([ Sominax 8]])37.2% &9 i
1

REBREBE-_ZS—ZTF+_-A8
Tt HLEFEEBKE—HH
AEREBEEERAF(EBRERE
¥ 2 M B2 A U EESocieté
des Mines d'Azelik S.A. ([ Somina
AN B Z372%M A FE =
Somina A R R 4R G B I R BR A
BEEAR R NFh=
T-hAF+_A=+—H K&
E 7 SominaR Al 2 A am B K
T #R1TLAERS % T SominaA &
ZIBITIEE -

HRZFRIFELCEEBE - M
ENTRABETSERRASTETRE
PAE R B BFERITE 3 Somina A
AABRERFELEME - Somina
RAR—E—RAFLE¥FEIAE
EREARAI R RIRIEEETF
EEmETNEEMNE -

KRB EERARBIEESomina
NAZHBERMERHREA
Somina A Al 1 #E AR 52 B B R
EUHA A FEBIFE 2R
BEEAE-
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14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
ii. 18.45% equity interest in CNNC Leasing Financial Leasing

Company Limited (“CNNC Leasing”)

CNNC Leasing is a limited liability company incorporated
in China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone, PRC and
principally engaged in the provision of finance to its
customers under finance lease arrangements and
factoring as approved by the Ministry of Commerce of

the PRC.

According to the amendment of articles of association of
CNNC Leasing dated 11th September, 2019, the Group
has right to appoint two out of eleven directors in the
board of CNNC Leasing with effect from that day.

On the same day, the Company appointed two directors
of CNNC Leasing. The
appointment of directors in board of directors of CNNC

into board of directors

Leasing provided the Group with the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of CNNC Leasing but is not in control or jointly control
over those policies. Accordingly, CNNC Leasing was re-
designated from an equity instrument at FVTOCI to an
in the
consolidated financial statements using equity method

associate and has been accounted for

since September 2019.

14. Ji’*ﬂéﬁ

NT)ZHERS o)
RiZmEREAR QA ([HixE
1) 18.45% Hy i #E

TREER-RAEFE(LE) 8
HESHARBEIMRINERE
ERA T2RERETFEEK
MAENREEELHMRIEE
BREEFREHRE -

BEZ—NFNLA+—BHF
RHEERARERELER  A£H
EEETPRHEHEESESF I
T —REEPHOMBITNE BE
R o

RA—B AKEZTTMRE
ERETTPREENEZTENE -
TREEEEENEFEEBREA
SEAERZ2ETFZAENHBHM
RERFORTE - BN ERHK
[l P2 5 L BOK - Bt - A
EREAFEFAREMY S Z K
BRIASHETRBERR A
BE-E-AFALARCERER
EEAFHHHRERT AR -

HK$'000
BT T
Fair value of equity instrument at FVTOCl as AEBR=-_T—hLF LA+ 8%
at 11th September, 2019 ﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁ)\ﬁtﬁﬁuﬁ &7 BT B &Y
& 11 Bt ‘& 430,591
Less: Group’s share of the net fair value of J& : R AR ZHEE Z AT #FE E K
the identifiable assets and liabilities of BENATFEFERMEN
CNNC Leasing (k] (411,421)
Goodwill recognised in interest in an REERAPZHERS  ERAFE
associate 19,170
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14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continvea

18.45% equity interest in CNNC Leasing Financial Leasing ii.

Company Limited (“CNNC Leasing”) (continued)

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st December,

2019 and 2018 are set out below:

4. B
MRz Eh

REMBRERME @

NFET_A=+—RHLFE

BATZER =

EHERRAR ([hxH

E1)18.45% M) I #E (&)

z—
+
un

:I]]//>

p=[lIg
T
ﬂulu

NER-ZZE—NF+=
H RNEBZBHEQT

ﬂ

Attributable equity
interest and voting rights
held by the Group

Country of incorporation ~RERAREERENRRE
Name of associate and operation 2019 2018  Principal activity
BEATEE AT W ILFEE —E-AE —ZT)\F ZEEBRENER
% %
Somina Republic of Niger 37.20 37.20 Mining
Somina2 &] EE®E BEERE
CNNC Leasing The PRC 18.45* N/A  Provision of financial
leasing services in the
PRC
HRZHEE o R ERHRMEE GRS
* The company is accounted for as an associate of the Company at 31st * BEADNERRNEAMEBRERME - Z

December, 2019 as in accordance with the memorandum and articles of
association of the company, major financial and operating policies of the
company require consent with simple majority in the board of directors. The

Group has two out of eleven directors in the board of directors of CNNC

Leasing. Therefore, the Group has significant influence over CNNC Leasing.

RAIRZZE-—NAF+ZA=+—BHER
ARRRNBERR  ZDRNEZH
%ﬁ@%ﬂ%”

ERESEMESY
CAKEMETREENERETH

+ %§$$ﬁﬁ% Hit - AEEEH

TREEABEATEN -
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14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Company Limited (“CNNC Leasing”) (continued)

14. REEEBERATIZER

ii. 18.45% equity interest in CNNC Leasing Financial Leasing i. FEREHEAERAA(HZAE

E1)18.45% M) I #E (&)

The financial information of CNNC Leasing based on (2T -NFTZA=+—H
financial information prepared by management in LEFE KHEEEWRELRSE
accordance with accounting policies of the Group for the EH gt HERENPZEEDN
year ended 31st December, 2019 is set out below: MBEISET:

31.12.2019

—E-hE

+=A=+-—H

HK$'000

EETT

Financial position: B R AR, -
Non-current assets IEREEE 9,096,374
Current assets M EE 2,394,362
Current liabilities mEaE (5,657,866)
Non-current liabilities EmEEE (3.649,135)
Net assets attributable to the owners of the HEZ AR M ZHEEE AEBEEE

associate FE 2,183,735
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying Bf& R el X ERESEMER

amount of the interest in the associate; FEEREER
Net assets attributable to the owners of the HEZ AR XM ERE AEBIEEE

associate F1E 2,183,735
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest AN&EEEMBE AT M ZHAEEL R

in the associate 7t 51 18.45%
Goodwill EES 19,170
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in ~ AEBREE QAP ZEAEERZN

the associate BRME(E 422,069
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14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 14. REBIZE AT 2R
ii. 18.45% equity interest in CNNC Leasing Financial Leasing i. FEREHEAERAA(HZAE
Company Limited (“CNNC Leasing”) (continued) E1)18.45% M) Ja #E (48)
2019
—B-NhE
HK$'000
EETT
Results of the associate for the period from H&E A ARPZHEEE =T —LFNA
11th September, 2019 to 31st December, +—HBRE-_Z—hLF+=A
2019: =+—BZEE:
Revenue WA 183,866
Loss and total comprehensive expense REAEEREMES WA ()
for the period (10,278)
Dividend received from the associate during ANHi{EHE & QB XA EC WD
the period D EL —
There are no significant restrictions on the ability of BE AR EHEEHURETERN
associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of AAREDAMENLEXIE
cash dividends. REVR & -
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET 15. EHEEE
Leased
Properties
HEME
HK$'000
BT T
As at 1st January, 2019 RZE-—NF—H—H
Carrying amount FREE —
As at 31st December, 2019 RZE—NF+=-A=+—~8H
Carrying amount REE 556
For the year ended 31st December, 2019 (EZE-NF+ZA=+—H
IEFE
Depreciation charge neEs 111
Expense relating to short-term leases with lease HEHHERENERGR LG A
terms end within 12 months of the date of initial  H#E12{E A R ¥ & 5 B 153k & %81
application of HKFRS 16 F165% HY FE A 535
Additions to right-of-use asset RETRAREE 667
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRLRE 651
The Group leases three offices for its operation. Lease REEHE=-EARAEZNETES -
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 2 years. The MEGRMETEHRR2F - AEETFE
Group has regularly entered into short-term leases for offices. Hﬂ FIVEHRAZHESGR BHER
As at 31st December, 2019, the portfolio of short-term leases E-NF+ZA=+—8 ZHH#
is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the &/\Héﬁiii?ﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ HESH AT

short-term lease expense disclosed above. HEMRBHEESRER
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16. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN

EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

On 12th March, 2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (the “Investor”), Xie He Kong Company Limited
(“XHK"), an independent third party, and CNNC Leasing
entered into a Transfer Framework Agreement, pursuant to
which XHK conditionally agreed to transfer, and the Investor
conditionally agreed to accept, the right to contribute to the
registered capital of CNNC Leasing in the amount of Renminbi
("RMB")120.19 million and acquire 12.019% of the registered
capital in CNNC Leasing (the “First Tranche Investment”), at a
consideration which is subject to a cap of RMB3 million.
Subsequently, the parties confirmed the consideration of the
rights to contribute to be RMB2.22 million. CNNC Leasing is a
subsidiary of the CNNC.

On the same day, the Investor and CNNC Leasing entered into
the Investment Framework Agreement, pursuant to which the
Investor conditionally agreed to make an investment of
RMB250 million (the “Second Tranche Investment”), subject to
completion of the First Tranche Investment and capital
contributions of other existing shareholders of CNNC Leasing
and/or other potential investors in relation to the increase of
capital. Upon completion of the First Tranche Investment and
the Second Tranche Investment, together with the capital
contributions of other existing shareholders of CNNC Leasing
and/or other potential investors, the issued and paid-up
registered capital of CNNC Leasing will be enlarged to RMB2
billion and the Investor would hold, in aggregate, not more
than 18.45% of the registered capital in CNNC Leasing (the
“Investments”).

As at 31st December, 2018, the acquisition has not been
completed and is subject to fulfillment of certain terms and
conditions. Transaction costs of HK$2,561,000 in relation to
the acquisition has been incurred and recognised as deposit
paid for acquisition of an equity instrument at FVTOCI, and
was capitalised as part of interests in CNNC Leasing which was
classified as equity instrument at FVTOCI upon completion of
the acquisition.

16. B

WEERAFEGTAHM
KWizBREIRZHEGFR
RZE—NF=ZA+=8 KR a—
HMEEZ2ENBRAR(ERER]D %
MEBRAR(HBIELD  BILE=
oS VERERBS B
I MEERGERAEEE REE
FEBRHEREXBLERE AJRHHR
%M &M E KR AR 120,190,000
ToMHERKEREZEEZMER
12019%([E—£ L&) RELR
A AR #3,000,0007T » H 1% - 1B 15 &
EMEHRE NS EEIALER
R (E A A R#2,220,0005T  F 1%
EAPREBWEAF -

AB - KEFHEAZEASTIEERE
B Bl - REFBEKEREE
it & % A A R #250,000,0005C H &
(BB HEASFEKRE—F
PERPZHEEEMBEAERRER %
HBEREEREELER A7
EE-ZTXNE—ELERE_£Y
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SEMBTIREEFIZELE®R - A
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FERBEBENFZEEFTMELRKLD
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16.

17.

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN
EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

On 18th February, 2019, the
entered into an agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with a

Investor, as the borrower,

financial institution for a term loan facility in the principal
amount of up to HK$300,000,000 (the for the
purpose of financing the investments in CNNC Leasing. The

uLoanu)

Loan is repayable over a period of 36 months (subject to
extension to 72 months as provided in the Facility Agreement)
from the date of the Facility Agreement.

On 26th February, 2019, Company announced that, following
all of the conditions precedent under the Transfer Framework
Agreement and the Investment Framework Agreement were
satisfied, the Investments was completed. Upon completion of
the acquisition, the Investor holds, approximately 18.45% of
the enlarged registered capital in CNNC Leasing and such
equity investments was accounted for as equity instrument at
FVTOCI up to 11th September, 2019. According to the
amendment of articles of association of CNNC Leasing dated
11th September, 2019, the boards of directors are responsible
for all operating and financing decisions of CNNC Leasing and
the Group has right to appoint two out of eleven directors in
the board of CNNC Leasing. Upon the appointment of two
directors in the board of directors of CNNC Leasing on 11th
2019, the Group is able to exercise significant
in CNNC Leasing. The
investment became interest in an associate with details in note
14.

September,

influence in the board decision

INTEREST IN A JOINT OPERATION

The Group has a joint operation, XXEM LLC. The Group has a
50% share in the ownership of a power facility in Mongolia.
The power facility is designed for the provision of power line
support to the Group and the joint operator. The Group is
entitled to 50% share of the revenue earned and bears 50%
share of the joint operation’s expenses.
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INVENTORIES 18. #&
2019 2018
—E-nE T
HK$000 HK$ 000
EETR BT T
Uranium concentrates = 48 o 213,449 23,043
Electronic and other products B REMER 127,409 77,337
340,858 100,380

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS

19. FEW S 5 BR 3 % HL fh FE UK

RELUREMFRIE

2019 2018
—E—-NhE —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T

Trade receivables — aged 0 to 30 days W E 5 I8
— OH &30H 231,322 21,611

Trade receivables — aged 31 to 60 days BUE S FRIA
— 31H Z60H 16,521 —
Other receivables (Note) E b fiE Yo sk mE (M 55) 3,377 48,577
Deposits paid EANEER 89 82
Prepayments B FRIE 200 33,440
251,509 103,710

As at 1st January, 2018, trade receivables amounted to
HK$70,005,000.

Note:  The amount in 2018 represents receivables from customers in relation to payments on
behalf of customers in provision of supply chain services as of 31st December,
2018.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will
understand the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
its credit limits. Credit sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. Credit limits attributed to customers
are reviewed regularly.

The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 45 days to its trade
customers and presented the aged analysis of trade receivables
based on the invoice date. The trade receivables have been
fully settled subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

RZE—NF—HA—H EURESE
X575 #£70,005,0007T ©

Wi R-Z-\FT-A=t-H0 —Z- /548
P BRSSP SR A A
WA o

BEWMMEP A AREW T RE
EPZEEERYBEEEARE -
AEBERABRFERTENEFLE
HERHEE - XTEPNERRERE
HEZ-

AEEGTHE S RTP302458ME
EN RBEHEREZEREAHRE
E2FNEWE ZERFEEK - TEEK
BEEAENRERRRES -
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19.

20.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the year ended 31st December, 2019 are set
out in note 30(b).

both years as the directors determined the amount is

There is no loss allowance made during
insignificant.

RESTRICTED CASH/BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Restricted cash

Restricted cash represent deposits pledged to banks to secure
bank borrowing and bills payable of the Group. Deposits
amounting to HK$2,234,000 and RMB15,000,000 have been
pledged to secure bank borrowings of HK$291,324,000 and
bank acceptance bills of RMB45,000,000 issued by a bank in
the PRC.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.01% to 2.50% (2018: 0.05% to 3.50%) per
annum.

During the year, the Group performed impairment assessment
on bank balances and concluded that the probability of
defaults of the counterparty banks are unlikely and

accordingly, no loss allowance is provided.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances/restricted
cash are set out in note 30(b).
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For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE=Z—-—hALF+-_A=+—HBLEFE

21. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. BEHE S - RBEREME
AND ACCRUALS f+ SR IE LU & FE 5 R
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented LT RRmERREZEAHAEESR
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: TIEMNE SRFER  REMENK
18 R JEEH R RBA 4
2019 2018
—E—-hE —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Trade payables — aged 0 to 30 days ERE 5 RIE
— OH =30H 153,398 —
Temporary receipt B B W R — 6,712
Bills payables ENEE 65,944 —
Interests payables FE AR 164 —
Other payables H th JE W R IR 3,015 881
Other payable to the joint operator of JERT & & TGRS
the joint operation (note) A (M 5%) 14,703 14,400
Accruals BT R 4,398 2,556
241,622 24,549
Note:  The amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of repayment. B BRI - 68 R EEER

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 30 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit

timeframe.

BEEmZFHAREEMARIA K&
B2 AT B R B B IR BUR - PAREAR
FMERNESREANGEHERANG
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/B °
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22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 22. I B1R
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E—-NE —E-N\F
+=ZBA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Deposit received from customers BRERFEI& 25,617 15,520
As at 1st January, 2018, contract liabilities amounted to RZE-—N\FE—HA—H 68H8EAE
HK$194,000. 75 #194,0007T °
Revenue amounting to HK$15,520,000 (2018: HK$194,000) REENERRELEBESOAEE #H
recognised during the year related to carried-forward contract B U A & 7% #815,520,0007T (20184 -
liabilities. 75 194,0007T) °
The Group receives the prepayments from wholesale customers AEBEEEEPEZEEEHHER W
when they sign the sale and purchase agreements. This will MEFHENRE - EHSESRH
give rise to contract liabilities at the execution of a contract, TREEERAaE EXHEBEAS RE
until the revenue recognised on relevant contracts. REBWARIE -
23. BANK BORROWINGS 23. SRITIER
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E—-NE ZE-)N\F
+=ZA=+—8B +tZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
The bank borrowings comprise: RITEREIE
HK$ bank borrowing — secured LA TCET HY ERAT B 3K
— BEA 291,324 —
US$ bank borrowings — unsecured LAZE TTET Y ERAT 8 5K
— RAHEM 180,071 —
RMB bank borrowings — unsecured AAREETRIRT
B — 2EHER 73,690 —
545,085 —
Loan front-end fee EXRAHEA (6,311) —
Bank borrowings due within one year and —FRNEBARIZEK
repayable on demand EEMIEITER 538,774 —
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23. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group's bank borrowings are variable-rate borrowings,
carry interest at a premium over Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR") or London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") or
Loan Prime Rate (“LPR"), prevailing lending rate quoted by the
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC Leading Rate”), as
appropriate. The effective interest rates of the borrowings
during the year ranged from 2.55% to 5.01%.

The Group’s borrowing of HK$285,013,000 that are
denominated in currencies other the functional currencies of
the relevant group entity. The borrowings are secured by the
18.45% equity investment in CNNC Leasing with carrying
value of HK$422,069,000, entire share capital of CNNC
International (HK) Limited ("CNNC (HK)”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, restricted cash of HK$2,234,000
and all monies, dividends and interest receivable in respect of
CNNC Leasing, if any.

Certain bank borrowings of the Group are subject to covenant
clauses, whereby a subsidiary is required to meet certain
stipulated financial ratios. The Group had not complied with
certain financial covenant as stipulated in the bank loan
agreement of the Group’s bank borrowing of
HK$285,013,000, (net with loan front-end fee of
HK$6,311,000) outstanding as at 31st December, 2019, which
requires the Group to meet certain ratio of consolidated total
liabilities to consolidated total assets at all times, after
recognition of the impairment loss of exploration and
evaluation assets of HK$210,367,000 in the consolidated
financial statements as at 31st December, 2019.

As such, an aggregate amount of HK$282,125,000 (net with
loan front-end fee of HK$3,373,000), which had original
contractual repayment dates beyond 31st December, 2020, is
reclassified as a current liability as at the end of the reporting
period. The Group has applied for a waiver to strict
compliance to meet the relevant financial covenant. As at the
date of approval of the consolidated financial statements, such
waiver, which includes a short term adjustment on certain
ratio, for the non-compliance of the covenant as stated in the
bank loan agreement has been granted by the bank.

Other than disclosed above, the subsidiary has fulfilled other
bank covenant requirements. The Group will closely monitor its
financial position to ensure the compliance with the relevant
financial covenants and undertaking requirements at all times.

23. RITER @

REBRRITEREZSHFIRER
ENEEREBRITREFRMAE
([ HIBOR |) 2k 1 2R 17 [A] 2 #7 pU 7 R
([LIBOR ) sk B ARIBITREMN TR
BEREFRITHE(LPR]) - REERA
ERNERFENF2.55%E5.01% °

7N £ B 1) 78 285,013,000 T £ & = A
NREBNINEEE NI EBESE -
HWEFRUNPEHEHEETRENBE
422,069,0007C H)18.45% K ix 18 & -
ARG EEWNBTRARIFEER (F
B)BRAR (BB Z(EBDHE
R A% o 2 78 #52,234,0007T ) R 4
GFR -2PEE - ULEPZBAENRK
BEfREKFZEENTBEIELE
HomAg -

REBEMRELETERITZHERD
R -BEZER FROLEARE
REBTHTHLE - R_F—NF
T_A=+—R AEBHEEKREBETH
iR 17 18 X B %) 7 #285,013,0007T (1
BB A B 48 #6,311,0000T /F 58)
B SR 1T B SR % R R AR TE B9 3K L B 7
NE ERAEBR -_T—AF+=
A=+ —BEHKEEUBRE P ER

GRIAHBEENREBEOBE
210,367,0007C7% - mE A HBE A EH
AHEEEN—TLE-

I - 4858 A 4975 16282,125,0007T (B
M E S ATim & A 498 %3,373,0007T)
WEETAHERBHE S T F
T_AZ+—B2% RHEHER=E
FoEARDAE - AEBERBR
PUBEBETEBYIERL - NAEH
B mEA AR RITERBTE
TP RETOTETRZAONBRG
FER o

Br Bt EESN - R FARIE W R H A
RITRNER - AEER T ERE
RN AERETEBY SR
NAGEEK o
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24. LEASE LIABILITY 24. HHEAE
31.12.2019
—E—-NhE
+=-A=+—H
HK$'000
BETT
Lease liability payable: ENEEAR:
Within one year —F R 331
Within a period of more than one year but
not more than two years —FLLEETBBEMT 228
559
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 B mBBEETAI —F A B e EN
months shown under current liabilities okl (331)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months JEREBEEEH TAY —F R I B ER
shown under non-current liabilities Kok 228
25. AMOUNTS DUE TO AN INTERMEDIATE  25. FEff—RE P iR AT~
HOLDING COMPANY/ULTIMATE mEERATF R
HOLDING COMPANY/FELLOW B ASRIE
SUBSIDIARIES
The amounts due to an intermediate holding company, A — MR ERA 7 REEERA
ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries are AINEERMERRKREUAARES]
denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and repayable B mEH - ﬁ'ﬂ%&ﬂzﬁ* g8 o
on demand.
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26. SHARE CAPITAL

26. Br &

27.

Number of ordinary shares Amount
LR E &8
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZF-0E —E-N\F ZB-hE "—ZT-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BETT
Ordinary shares of BREES¥LTZ
HK$0.01 each gl
Authorised: ERE
At 1st January and R—A—ARk
31st December +ZA=+—H 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREAR
At 1st January and R—H—BK
31st December +=-A=+—H 489,168,308 489,168,308 4,892 4,892

RESERVES

The capital reserve mainly represents the deemed capital
contribution during the year ended 31st December, 2010.

The non-distributable reserve represents the aggregate amount
of the share premium of the subsidiaries as at the time of a
group reorganisation effected on 13th December, 2002 (the
“Group Reorganisation”).

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
of the
subsidiaries and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares

aggregate nominal amount of the share capital

issued in exchange thereof pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation.

Statutory reserve is a reserve required by the relevant laws in
the PRC applicable to subsidiaries in the PRC for enterprise
development purpose.

27. &
BEARETEENREBEZE -2 —FF
+ - A=+—BIFEHESAEIEZ
S F o

PANKFEHER_-_ZEZT_F+_H
TZHETEBREA(SEEARAD R
MEABZ MG EARE-

EHERAREEEEARHE QA
PRAHEAEEANRALILERAE @R
AFF#ETRMEEZIRZZ5E -

AERBEETEEREERTHER
RPBEFRANHE  AREEER -
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 28. BB IR #EsT &l

The Company adopted a share option scheme pursuant to a
resolution passed on 31st May, 2013 (“2013 Share Option
Scheme”). Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to eligible employees and
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from
time to time, grant share options to outside eligible advisors
and consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries at the
discretion of its board of directors. The purpose of the 2013
Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the best available
personnel, to provide additional incentive to employees,
directors, consultants, advisers and shareholders of the Group
and to promote the success of the business of the Group.

The number of shares which may be issued under the schemes
are subject to the following limits:

(i) the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the share option scheme
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the total number of issued shares of the Company from
time to time;

(i) without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the share option scheme of the
Company is not permitted to exceed 48,916,830 shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date approving the 2013 Share Option
Scheme; and

(iii)  the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of such grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance
of the grant of the option. The exercise price is determined by
the directors of the Company and will be at least the higher
of (i) the average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares
of the Company for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; (ii) the closing price of the
ordinary shares of the Company on the date of the grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the Company.

Any options granted under the scheme must be exercised
during such option period as may be determined and notified
by the directors of the Company, which shall not exceed 10
years from the date of acceptance of the option.

No options have been granted under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme since their adoption.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital and reserves as disclosed in the consolidated financial

statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
annually. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
assess the annual budget prepared by management of the
Company. Based on the proposed annual budget, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with capital. The directors of the Company also
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues,
dividend distribution as well as the issue of new debts.

28. R R HEST 8l

29.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

N == e I i

30. & TR
(a) EMIRZEH

2019 2018
—E-RE —E—N\&F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT 7T T

Financial assets ERIEE

Financial asset at amortised cost BEIEN AT E W

TREE 370,856 248,187

Financial liabilities ERE1E
Amortised cost B SH PR AR 780,016 19,285
Lease liability HEAE 559 —

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, restricted cash, bank balances and
cash, trade, bills and other payables, bank borrowings,
lease liability, amounts due to an intermediate holding
company, ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31st December, 2019, carrying amounts of
financial assets represent the maximum exposure to
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCiES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group uses an
internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are
reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures are
in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
ECL model
balances individually by reference to repayment histories

impairment assessment under on trade
and current past due exposure for customers taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue cost

or effort.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 100%
2018: 100%) of the total
receivables was due from three customers engaged in

(31st December, trade
supply chain and uranium trading industry (2018: one
customer engaged in uranium trading industry).

Other receivables and rental deposits

The credit risks on other receivables and rental deposits
are limited because the counterparties have no historical
default record and the directors expect that the general
economic conditions will not significantly change for the
12 months after the reporting date. Therefore, the credit
rating is considered to be low credit risk and the loss
allowance is measured on 12m ECL basis.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
regarding other receivables with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.

30 &Rt TR

(b)

TRRERER QA

eREREEERERBE
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ERE -BEMABERARE
FHRBIFFD - D REEMED
BREF UBRERIRRETSHK
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AXFHNREEES  MEFIE
BREZRASLE N -

AEBMEERBRERARERE
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Bank balances/restricted cash
The credit risks on bank balances/restricted cash are
limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. Therefore, the credit rating is considered to be
low credit risk and the loss allowance is measured on
12m ECL basis.

For the year ended 31st December, 2019 and 2018, the
Group assessed the ECL for bank balances/restricted cash
were insignificant and thus no impairment loss was
recognised.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
regarding bank balances, with exposure spread over a
number of banks.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

—NE+ZRA=+—HILEE

30 €M T H»

(b) ﬁ:mﬂﬁlﬂ“""'ﬂﬁ’f“&ﬁaﬁ
f‘“EﬂﬁﬁfﬂﬁE;‘-Fﬂ'(f’)
RITHE R R #1754

RITH

gk RBRHFRNEER

AR ARBEFHREREE
FEEBEENEEFATSH

RIT-H - EH
E1= A ER -
BHEE

a B

HEz_—Z%

—NFR_F—

T AR AR A R
1BREHLA2(E A

EER AR

NEF

TZA=+—HILFE *&HE

AHERITHE 8RR IR B 17

R FE

HEEERALTEKR  FRE

ERRMERK -
AEBEYEENEERRERR
RITHEEH BB RE TR

7

R B H A BB A R B RF AR AT (G

comprises the following categories: BIELATER
Internal Trade Other
credit rating Description receivables financial assets
P & 1= A F 4 i it FE Wt 2 5 BR =X Hith&REE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL — not ~ 12-month ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired
AWENE S RGUFEHRARRE BREEMEH 2HRHEEER R2EARSGE
T H — REGERRE B8
Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL — not  Lifetime ECL — not
credit risk since initial recognition through credit-impaired credit-impaired
information developed internally or
external resources
15t BitEBARRAENERIIIBER FHEHEEEFE 2HEHEEER
PEHERAR - ERRAREZEM — RAERRIE — RABERRIE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
Bx ERBRAREEFREGERRRE PHEHEEERE 2HEHEEERR
— ERRE — ERRE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor ~ Amount is written ~ Amount is written off
is in severe financial difficulty and the off
Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
B BERBRABKABGRENK PHEER PHEER

RE MAAEERERENRE AR
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCiES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

30 &Rt TR
(b) 2RtEMEEEHERBE

/435 )

f;"'E/_ﬁ B 0 5 (8 5F 1 =)

(continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TRFAMINE T AEENERHE
Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL ENERRRKBO XEHEE
assessment: E BT

External Internal
credit credit
rating rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
5B LE
ERFSR GEREFE @RS HEHELSESE BRELE
2019 2018
ZE-hE —ZT-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% BE®FRXT BETx
Financial assets at
amortised cost
REHEBRATEN
SHEE
Bank balances/restricted 20 (Note) N/A 12-month ECL 119,547 177,917
cash
RITEH/ ZRIFR T A NEABRHEESSE
Trade receivables 19 N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL 247,843 21,611
BB 5 85 3% 1R B FHEREESAE
Other receivables 19 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 3,377 48,577
H At & I 5% EvEN A REABEHREERS
Deposits paid 19  NA Low risk 12-month ECL 89 82
ERHE 1K & R NEABHEESR
Note:  The external credit ratings range from A1 to Caal quoted from the rating Bt 5 NER A AR AT AR 0 6 B fE A1 B Caal (HE R RR

scale of an international credit rating agency.

ERAARBNIRERFSL) -
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
pOliCiES (continued)
Market risk

(1)

Foreign currency risk management
While most of the Group’s operations are

transacted in the functional currencies of the

respective group entities, the Group undertakes
certain transactions denominated in foreign
currencies. The Group currently has not formulated
any hedging policies against its exposure to
currency risk. However, the Group manages its
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rate and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary
assets and monetary liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies (HK$, Mongolia Tughrik (“MNT")
and RMB at the end of both reporting periods are
as follows:

—NE+ZRA=+—HILEE

30 &Rt TR
(b) 2RtEMGEEEHERBE

(1)

HEAR
(i) SNERE R E
BEREBMALGEH T

NEEBEEZINEEE
EIT EARSEBEETET
AINE T EZR S - A&
EREITERLEEER ’i
%ll TE AT ] 8 B SR
CAREEFEBREY ﬁ*&
ﬁl\EET%@b”EﬁQI\”%
B THRBERERE
B ERKINERR

AEBELINESTE(BREE
B BERERRAR®)Z
EREERERAGNMN
EREHREEEDT

HK$ MNT RMB
i BE#&ER ARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SEFT  BETFT  BETR
As at 31st December, 2019 R-T—Nh%E
+=A=+-8
Assets BE 2,634 713 445
Liabilities BfE 285,507 14,884 1,977
As at 31st December, 2018 RZE—N\F
+=-A=+—H
Assets BE 1,353 142 1,179
Liabilities =R 5 14,117 1,977
Sensitivity analysis BRRE D
The following table details the Group's sensitivity TRFFAHAREE LA

to a 5% (2018: 5%) increase and decrease in the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities
against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2018:
5%) represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates.

138 CNNC International Limited 2019 Annual Report

AEBEENREEEY
MM ERS% (ZF—N
Fio%)BBAHEE -

5% (ZZF—NF :5%)K
RETEHERS AL
B B B RT( o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ontineq

For the year ended 31st December, 2019 EHZEZ_=%

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
pOliCiES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(1)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2018: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates a
decrease in post-tax loss (2018: increase in post-tax
profit) and other equity where the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities strengthen
5% (2018: 5%) against the relevant currency. For a
5% (2018: 5%) weakening of the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and

REMBRERME @

—NE+ZRA=+—HILEE

30 &Rt TR
(b) 2RtEMEEEHERBE

/y.z\

45 B B )
() SFEE @Eﬁf ()
R E D AT ()
BREREDHE %ER EiE
B ASNEE ST E R & & I8

B WaEREHRAEH
BME  AEINEEXEE
5% (ZZF — \F :5%)
AT IE 8RR T 12 B 18R
D(ZE—N\F : B&EFE
) RAMERR D - H

Eiﬂ*ﬁf@‘il‘a%fmwﬁ“b
BESREEEEENT
5% (=ZF — )\F :5%) e
WMiEMEEERENIIES

opposite impact on the loss and other BEEEEERE% (=
comprehensive expense and the amounts below T-N\F:5%) Alg
would be negative. EEREMEZEIHESE
REEROZLE MAT

THEGRAE -
2019 2018
—E-hE —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
HK$ B 11,791 (62)
MNT BRER 592 584
RMB AR 64 33
This is mainly attributable to the exposure EXERHANEAFEHRR

outstanding on trade and other receivables,
restricted cash, bank balances and cash and bank
borrowings denominated at the end of the

reporting period.

TRRERER QA

BB W B 5 B RN H fth e
1451* C R B AF R ERTT

REERIA KR & MR 1T 18 3K
aJrfgﬁHEi%E'\Jlﬂ]&DFﬁﬁ"
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For the year ended 31st December, 2019 EHZEZ_=Z

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(11)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (see
note 23 for details). The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of HIBOR, LIBOR, LPR and PBOC Lending Rate,
respectively. The Group manages its interest rate
exposures by assessing the potential impact arising
from any interest rate movements based on
interest rate level and outlook. The management
will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed
and floating rates and ensure they are within
reasonable range.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for
variable-rate bank borrowings. The analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
existed for the whole year. A 50 (2018: 50) basis
points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 (2018: 50) basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the
year ended 31st December, 2019 would have
increased/decreased by HK$2,276,000 (2018: Nil).
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For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE=Z—-—hALF+-_A=+—HBLEFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCiES (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group has available unutilised short-term banking
facilities of HK$303,163,000 (2018: Nil).

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Company, the directors of the Company have given
careful consideration to the future liquidity of the Group
in light of the fact that the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$219,323,000 for the year ended 31st December,
2019 and as of that date, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$100,080,000.

The directors of the Company have performed an
assessment of the Group’s future liquidity and cash
flows, taking into account the short term adjustment on
certain financial covenant in respect of bank borrowings,
the Group's operating cash flows and available unutilised
short-term banking facilities.

The directors of the Company consider that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations for at
least the next twelve months from the date of approval
of the consolidated financial statements.

30 &Rt TR
(b) 2RtEMEEEHERBE

REVE = 7 B

REERBESRARE  ~&H
SEEBRERBERESEED
EREEERRBARZKFE MU
BNAEB EEMTES IR
REEREED2FE -BTHEE
ERPITERNEAER - L
RERZLOREST - RAFEH
R AEBHBARBANEHIR
171z B 58745 #303,163,0007t (=
T—N\F:E) -

ERAQAREHE-_ZT—NLEFE+=
A=+—RLEFEMNFEBARE
#£219,323,0007T * ARRIMES
EREARRD T E OB 15 R
EEEZRTASEENRRES
BT -BE-_ZE-hF+-A
=t+—BLFEE AEENRK
B EF 58 A75%100,080,0007T °

ARANEFCHHEARENR
KnSEERRERE  Hat
RUEGRRZO 2 EHBHERMES
MR ARENEERERE
KAl BB RS A/ EHRITE
E#-o

ARAREZRA BHEAGHY
BHREik<BEEL>T_BAR -
AEEKERHNEEESRS
HELRHESYBITENHKE
£
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCiES (continued)

LiQUidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the

30 € T H»

(b)

SRHEMEEBERBE
REELERE»

TREMANE T AEBETES
BEEMRKEREEE  -ZEK
ERESRHEBENRITARESR
2 BREAEEAJESEINN
= FHHREN HMIENTES
HEBENIHEERBTENER
AH-ZXRBEMNBMNEALES
) BHERER T ET

end of the reporting period. F=EHH -
Weighted On demand or Total Carrying
average less than >5 undiscounted amount at
interest rate 3 months 4-12 months  1-2 years >2-<5 years years  cash flows 31.12.2019
—E-0E
g &ES mE SRME #FH +=A=+-H
THHE DPRZEA  +tZAR -EWE EORIFE SRIFE BeRESH fREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI EEFT  BETRT  BEFR  E%TR EETR EETR BB
2019 ~g-1%
Non-derivative EHETIR
instruments
Trade, bills and other ERES ZER
payables Hth e B - 237,224 - - - - 237,224 237,224
Bank borrowings RITER
— Variable interest rate s Lk 4.07 545,085 - - - - 545,085 538,774
Amounts due to an FER— RN R
intermediate holding AEFE
company - 1,901 - - - - 1,901 1,901
Amounts due to ultimate FER— R R R R
holding company ARFIE - 1,977 - - — - 1,977 1,977
Amounts due to fellow ERRASZNE
subsidiaries ARFIE - 140 - - — - 140 140
Lease liability HERE 442 87 261 231 - - 579 559
786,414 261 231 - - 786,906 780,575
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

REMBRERME @

—NE+ZRA=+—HILEE

30 €M T H»

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) £ EMREEBERBE
pOliCiES (continued) (%)
LiQUidity risk (continuea) i ggﬁﬁ@(")
On demand or Total
less than undiscounted Carrying amount
3 months  4-12 months 1-2 years >2-<5 years cash flows  at 31.12.2018
TN\
BER mz EANES RFHE tZA=1—H
SREEA +Z{@AR —EMF ZORDE HEeREBAH REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
2018 —B-0\E
Non-derivative EHTEIR
instruments
Trade and other payables EREZREf
e R 15,281 — — — 15,281 15,281
Amounts due to an R —EmsER
intermediate holding REAFE
company 1,910 — - — 1,910 1,910
Amounts due to ultimate B —HES&ER
holding company RFIE 1,977 — - — 1,977 1,977
Amounts due to fellow ERRASZNE
subsidiaries RAFE 17 — — — 17 117
19,285 — - — 19,285 19,285
Fair value measurement of financial (c) ST EZAFEHEHEE

(c)

instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate to their fair values.

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31st December 2018,
commitments of HK$236,000 for future minimum

the Group had outstanding
lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases for rented

office which fall due within one year.

31.

TREENEBRABZA

FETS

txﬁﬁfﬁfﬁé/ﬁiﬁﬁi%%ﬁﬁ%

ARAEERA

BARZEBERAET -

IS ORI

RANREHERARI Rz 2 REE

FeBBEREEREER

++

= oo

0% S

FEM

= K i
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For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE-_ZT—-hAF+ A=+ —HIEFE

32. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 32. BKEFIEI

Effective from 1st December, 2000, the Group has participated
in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”)
for all its eligible employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme
is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution

payable in the future years.

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
Mongolia, the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (“the Schemes”) organised by the
Government of Mongolia whereby the Group is required to
make contributions to the Schemes at a rate of 11%-13.5%
of the eligible employees’ salaries. Contributions to the

Schemes vest immediately.

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s PRC subsidiary is required to participate in a
defined contribution retirement scheme administrated by the
The Group’s PRC subsidiary
contribute funds which are calculated on certain percentage of

local municipal government.
the average employee salary as agreed by local municipal
government to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of
the employees. The principal obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the

required contributions under the scheme.

During the year, the total amount contributed by the Group to
the relevant retirement benefit schemes is HK$771,000 (2018:
HK$62,000).
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33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 33. & EFESFEL B ENH
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES AR
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TREJAEERETHAELEERE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- VEBFE BRERBESRFReE
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are BoRmEIPELAAGENESRE
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, ERFFEERAEEFEREMNER
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows ANPHERKREREETHNRERE °
as cash flows from financing activities.
Amount Amount
due to an due to Amounts Interests
intermediate ultimate due to payable
holding holding fellow (included in Bank
company company subsidiaries  Lease liability other payables) borrowings
FERHIR
iLr el Loy EHBR EftRB% (BEELRY

BRASRE HRAFRE

MEAR HEAR RSP RITER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT BRI BETT BETT BRI
At 1st January, 2018 RZE-\5-A—H 1,907 2,678 117 — - —
Financing cash flows BERER — (706) — - - —
Exchange difference SNEESRHE 3 5 — - - —
At 31st December, 2018 RZE-NF
t-A=1+-8 1,910 1977 117 - - -
New lease entered MEIREER - — — 667 - -
Financing cash flows BEAGRE — — 3 (116) (14,712) 537,885
Finance costs BBRA - - - 8 14,876 -
Exchange difference IEESHE 9) - - - - (1,592)
Amortisation of loan front-end B AIHIE B
fee - - - - - 2,481
At 31st December, 2019 RZZ-NE
TZA=1+-8 1,901 1,977 140 559 164 538,774
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34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

()

—NE+ZRA=+—HILEE

34.&H§3ﬁ?§

The following transactions and balances were entered into AR 2R SR D RIRFERNE LR
during the year or outstanding at the end of the reporting i&%/ﬁﬂﬂirﬁﬂigi
period respectively.
Remuneration of directors and other () EERHABEIEEEER
members of key management EZiMe
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FAESREMFTETEERKE
management during the year was as follows: ZHMenT
2019 2018
—E-hE —N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Short-term benefits %2 HA4E A 5,509 4,676
Post-employment benefits RIKIE1E T 58 43
5,567 4,719

(i)

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.

Transactions and balances with PRC

government-related entities in the PRC
The Group operates in an economic environment
currently pre-dominated by entities controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC

government.

In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger group of
companies under CNNC which is controlled by the PRC
government. The balances with other government related
entities are disclosed in note 25.

The Group has also entered into various transactions,
including deposits placements with certain banks and
financial institutions which are PRC government-related
entities in its ordinary course of business. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that except as
disclosed above, transactions with other PRC government
related entities are not significant to the Group’s
operations.
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34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continvea)

(iii)

(iv)

During the year ended 31st December, 2019, the Group
paid rental and related expenses of HK$260,000 (2018:
HK$258,000) to a fellow subsidiary for its office in the
PRC. The related party transaction does not constitute a
disclosed continuing connected transaction as defined in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31st December, 2018, the Group
entered into Transfer Framework Agreement with XHK
and Investment Framework Agreement with CNNC

Leasing, respectively, in relation to acquisition of

interests in CNNC Leasing.
During the year ended 31st December 2019, the Group
completed acquisition of 18.45% equity interest in CNNC

Leasing.

Details of the transaction are set out in Note 16.

34, BEBFHE
(iii) @2 T NAEF+-_A=+—H

(iv)

TRRERER QA

EFER  NREBFREUNFE
ZHMBEMAREZFETEKE
AEIZNAe RBABERIBE
260,000 (ZF — NF: B
258,0007T) © W E 75 R 5~
A XS LA EER
CHEBRFBERERS -

HE-_T—-\F+=ZA=+—H
EFER  NEERKEFRZE
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 35. XA M HBIR A R #EIBR
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company at the () RBERXRARBDFBARRE

end of the reporting period:

2019 2018
—E—-hE —E—N\H&F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT 7T T
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR Z&E 265,010 447,180
Amount due from a subsidiary NG S 337,149 48,966
602,159 496,146
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables and prepayments H b E SR IE A
T8I RIE 145 145
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NN EN — 283,255
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBRIR® 5,495 8,574
5,640 291,974
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables and accruals H A &~ FRIE A K&
FEFT R R 3,474 1,646
Amount due to a subsidiary JE T —FE BT /&8 & &)
I 305,388 305,479
308,862 307,125
Net current liabilities mEaEFEE (303,222) (15,151)
Net assets BEFE 298,937 480,995
Capital and reserves B AR K 1
Share capital [N 4,892 4,892
Reserves 1 294,045 476,103
298,937 480,995

148 CNNC International Limited 2019 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ontineq
REMHRRMTE @

For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE=Z—-—hALF+-_A=+—HBLEFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 35. R AT BN REER

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (ontinvea) (&)
(b) Statement of changes in equity (b) BEXREEHR
Non-
Share Share Capital distributable Translation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total

kx  Ritg® A%EG TUSREE BRERE  RHER it
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
AETT  E%TRn  EETR  BETR  B%Tn  B%Tn  B¥TR

At 1st January, 2018 nZE-\§-A—H 4,892 868,805 30,748 98,291 1,533 (458,563) 545,706
Loss for the year FRER — — — — — (65,480) (65,480)
Exchange differences arising  BREFMEACEXZE

on translation — - - — 769 - 769
Total comprehensive income ~ FRZEMA (B )

(expense) for the year ake) — — — — 769 (65,480) (64,711)
At 31st December, 2018 RZZ-N\E

+-A=+-H 4,892 868,805 30,748 98,291 2,302 (524,043) 480,995

Loss for the year ENEE — - - — — (1819220 (181,922)
Exchange differences arising  BREMELZELZS

on translation — - - — (136) - (136)

Total comprehensive expense SR 2 X EE
for the year — — - — (136) (181,922) (182,058)

At 31st December, 2019 RZE-NE
+ZR=1t-H 4,892 868,805 30,748 98,291 2,166 (705,965) 298,937
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36. A A B X EMBATFT

RAERSHA - ARA2EBHE
DAREDT ;

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of
both reporting periods are as follows:

Issued and Proportion of ownership

Name of Place of Place of fully paid share/ interest/voting power Principal
subsidiary incorporation operation registered capital held by the Company activities
ERTRER FARREEES/
WBASER EMBIHE EEnY ffr /MR BRERZILE IREH
Directly Indirectly
E# i
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-0E ZE-\E ZB-0E CEN\E
% % % %
China Nuclear International  British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 - — Supply chain and uranium
Corporation ("BVI") US§50,000 trade
PREREEERAA EBRRES B LERE£50,0007 fEERBES
CNNC International (HK) Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 - — Trading of mineral property
Limited HK$10,000 and provision of
management services
% (EB) Bk Bk L3R 757%10,0007T BNESRREERRE
CNNC International Holdings ~ PRC PRC Registered capital 100 100 - — Supply chain
(Shenzhen) Limited (Note i) HK$60,000,000
formerly known as
CNNC International Supply
Chain (Shenzhen) Limited
(Note (i)
PHREBER(RINERAT $E HE HMEREE it e s
(MRTREREERE 60,000,0007C
(RINBERAF) i3k
Emeelt Mines LLC Mongolia Mongolia Registered capital - — 100 100 Mineral exploration in the
US$10,000 Mongolia
Emeelt Mines LLC ey ey & AZ 2100007 RERERE
deal Mining BVI Hong Kong Registered capital 100 100 - — Investment holding
US$50,000
BREXARAA EBRLES ) &R E£50,0007 RERR
Note: B 5
(i) CNNC International Holdings (Shenzhen) Limited is a wholly foreign owed enterprise (i) AR B R AR AR ORI B R R R~ 7EH B K S/ 5h

established in the PRC. HMEEMRE-
EERIAESFRATIEFNELRSH
¥B BAERBEZARANE R
Al -ZEERAILEMMEBAR 25
BEEERBRITR-

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results,
assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

EAFEFE LEMBAAETAE
GBS -

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.
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REMBRERME @

For the year ended 31st December, 2019 BEZE=Z—-—hALF+-_A=+—HBLEFE

37. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the status of the Lawsuit relating to the Mongolian
Mining Project are set out in note 13.

After the recent outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
("COVID-19 Outbreak”), a series of precautionary and control
measures have been implemented across the globe. The Group
has been closely monitoring the development of the COVID-19
Outbreak. The Group expects COVID-19 Outbreak will have a
negative impact on the Group’s revenue and results for the
first half of 2020. The actual impacts may differ from these
estimates as the situation continues to evolve and when
further information may become available.

37. R EHABEIR

HERHEXEREBENFLRRRNHF
MEREMEI3PIL -

B E0090F T RESHE
([COVID-1918 %) 2 1% &2 KEE R
BRI T — R FER A S i o A
SE-—EEFYERCOVID-19E W
R - AEETEFCOVID- 198 % 8 %
AEBN_ZT_ZF ¥ FHRAM
XEELAEVE HMERINTH
BRARATEESEZER BERY
ZrggREEHBTAMTR -
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Financial Summary
HBRHRE

Set out below is a financial summary of the Group for each of the WU TNHIAEEBHE T —NLFE+ - A
five years ended 31st December, 2019: ST—HIEREAFESF2UMBHE -

RESULTS B

For the year ended 31st December,

BE+t-A=t-BL%EE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“E-F%& “E-RE —E—+F ZE-0\% ~F-1E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BEFT
Revenue I3 57,755 189,429 652,600 1,992,052 3,169,836
(Loss) profit before tax BREA (B8 RN (220,599) (28,192) 257 4,292 (217,406)
Income tax expense (credit) MERAY (HEe) - — — 19,321 (1,917)
(Loss) profit for the year FR(ER)EH (220,599) (28,192) 257 23,613 (219,323
(Loss) earnings per share R(B8E) &
— Basic (HK cents) — BEAR(E) (45.1) (5.8) 0.1 48 (44.8)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERABRE
As at 31st December,
R+=R=+-8
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—T-nf —T-RE “E—+F —E-N\%F ZB-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETFT
Total assets BEE 608,716 792,148 728,390 610,767 1,147,144
Total liabilities BEE (38,831) (250,265) (182,684) (44,073) (812,222
Equity attributable to owners of NS N/ A
the Company 1 569,885 541,883 545,706 566,694 334,922
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